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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good

          3  afternoon everyone. Welcome to the Transportation

          4  Committee hearing.  Yes, you are in the right

          5  Committee room.  The chambers.  I am not John Liu:

          6  Unfortunately, Council Member Liu cannot be here

          7  today.  He does make his apologies and it's a

          8  privilege and an honor the Chair this Transportation

          9  Committee hearing today, and be with you.  So again,

         10  welcome.

         11                 Today's Transportation Committee

         12  hearing, we will hold a hearing on Intro. 339,

         13  introduced by Council Member Liu, Gennaro, Koppell,

         14  Mendez, and Yassky.  This bill would require that at

         15  the next taxi license or medallion sale, scheduled

         16  for this June, half of the 308 medallions scheduled

         17  to be sold, will be for wheelchair- accessible

         18  taxis, and the other half will be for alternative-

         19  fuel vehicle taxis.

         20                 Taxi medallions give their owners the

         21  valuable privilege of picking up street hails in New

         22  York City.  There are currently 12,779 taxi

         23  medallions in New York City.  Of this number, only

         24  27 are wheelchair- accessible, and only 22 are

         25  hybrid- electric vehicles.  Except for three hybrid-
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          2  electric taxis, all of these accessible and green

          3  taxis exist because of prior sales of accessible and

          4  green medallions.  Clearly, because of the benefits

          5  that accessible and green taxis provide to the

          6  public, their numbers should be increased.

          7                 At almost every taxi industry trade

          8  show, designers predict that the taxi of the future

          9  will be a hybrid- electric and wheelchair accessible

         10  vehicle.  We agree with this vision of the future,

         11  and it certainly does make sense.  Taxis operate

         12  many hours of the day, many of them 24 hours a day,

         13  adversely affecting our environment.  Green taxis

         14  would help eliminate much of this pollution.

         15                 Also, it is important for all

         16  segments or our society to be able to use taxis.

         17  But, with so few accessible taxis, it is almost

         18  impossible for someone in a wheelchair to hail an

         19  accessible taxi.  For now, we can significantly

         20  increase the number of accessible taxis and green

         21  taxis through this medallion sale.

         22                 Much of the opposition to increasing

         23  the number of accessible and green taxis has been

         24  because of the lack of experience in New York City

         25  with these types of vehicles.  If this bill is
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          2  enacted, there will be almost 200 accessible taxis,

          3  and approximately 200 green taxis.  Not only will

          4  this increase the possibility of a wheelchair user

          5  actually hailing an accessible taxi, and help

          6  decrease pollution and our reliance on foreign oil,

          7  but it would also give us, for the first time, a

          8  significant sample from which to learn about the

          9  experience of operating accessible and green taxis.

         10  With these vehicles on the street, we will no longer

         11  have to speculate about questions regarding

         12  durability, insurance, and other issues.

         13                 This Committee has no doubt that the

         14  taxi of the future will be a wheelchair accessible,

         15  green vehicle.  We hope that with the added

         16  experience gathered from this medallion sale, the

         17  day when we can have 100 percent accessible greet

         18  taxi fleet will be sooner, rather than later.

         19                 I want to thank a couple of

         20  individuals that have put this hearing together.

         21  Phillip Hom, to my right, the Legal Counsel for the

         22  Committee; Roberta Ragone, to my left, the Special

         23  Projects Coordinator; Chima Obichere, our Finance

         24  Division; and John Collins, our Press Officer.  I

         25  want to thank my colleagues for being here today.
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          2  To my right, we have Miguel Martinez, and to my

          3  left, Larry Seabrook.  And Rose Mendez.  Thank you

          4  very much, colleagues, for being here.  I want to

          5  thank the Sergeant- of- Arms (sic) for making of

          6  sure law and order in this chambers today.  And

          7  again, I want to thank you all for being here today.

          8            At this point, I'm going to call up and

          9  introduce our first panel.  And I've been joined by

         10  Council Member Andrew Lanza. Councilman Lanza.

         11  Commissioner Daus, welcome.  Good to see you here

         12  again.  Go on.

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Mr. Chairman,

         14  Members of the Committee, my name is Matt Daus.  I

         15  am the Commissioner and Chairman of the New York

         16  City Taxi and Limousine Commission.  To my right is

         17  our General Counsel, Chuck Frasier, and to my left,

         18  is our First Deputy Andy Salkin.

         19                 I want to thank you and the Committee

         20  for the opportunity to testify regarding Intro. 339,

         21  a bill which seeks to dramatically change the

         22  structure of the upcoming sale of 308 taxicab

         23  medallions.

         24                 Today, I will provide an overview of

         25  the three- year process that has led to this final
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          2  auction, and then make four key points regarding

          3  Intro. 339, to outline why the TLC cannot support

          4  it.

          5                 First, the bill proposes to change

          6  the rules for medallion sale auctions less than one

          7  month from the start of bid collections.  Two months

          8  after the Commission publicly voted on those rules,

          9  and two months after I announced those rules to the

         10  Council in my preliminary budget testimony.  By

         11  waiting until the last moment, the Council's

         12  proposal has created significant confusion and

         13  concern among potential bidders and the taxicab

         14  industry, including lenders and brokers.

         15                 Second, the TLC is already committed

         16  to tripling the number of wheelchair accessible cabs

         17  in service, and to continue testing the viability of

         18  various vehicles.  To date, there are no vehicles

         19  that have proven themselves able to fully meet the

         20  needs of passengers.  The bill mandates that an

         21  additional hundred unproven vehicles be placed into

         22  accessible service, and it is simply too soon to do

         23  so.

         24                 Third, the Administration is

         25  committed to finding ways to provide demand-
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          2  responsive transportation service that is available

          3  for disabled passengers on a Citywide basis.  This

          4  bill does not make meaningful progress toward that

          5  goal, and would have a minimal impact on service, as

          6  it affects only one portion of the for- hire vehicle

          7  industry that primarily serves only the Central

          8  Business District of Manhattan.  As an alternative,

          9  the Administration is prepared to develop a

         10  comprehensive plan that includes the input of

         11  disabled passengers, the riding public, TLC

         12  regulated industries, and of course, the Council

         13  about how best to leverage available resources that

         14  we have, vehicles and technology, to provide service

         15  to all passengers in all five boroughs.  We hope the

         16  Council would be willing to join us in focusing

         17  their energies on such an effort.

         18                 Fourth, and finally, the

         19  Administration stands with the Council in support of

         20  a cleaner taxicab fleet.  And last Fall, the

         21  Commission passed rules to allow for the use of

         22  hybrid- electric vehicles.  Those rules waived

         23  various requirements that apply to all other cabs,

         24  most notably, the safety partition.  The TLC has

         25  already committed to more than tripling the number
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          2  of alternative fuel taxicabs in service, and

          3  continuing an ongoing evaluation of their overall

          4  performance.  But, as with accessible cabs, with

          5  hybrids, it is too soon to mandate that another

          6  hundred unproven vehicles be placed into service at

          7  this time.

          8                 And I'd like to have the opportunity

          9  to provide a brief overview of the medallion sale

         10  planning process, for those who haven't been

         11  involved in it.

         12                 In 2003, the State of New York,

         13  through Chapter 63 of the Laws of 2003, authorized

         14  the City to sell an additional 900 taxicab

         15  medallions.  In June of that year, the Council

         16  passed, and the Mayor signed, Local Law 51,

         17  establishing the nine percent minimum set- aside for

         18  accessible and alternative- fuel vehicles, or

         19  medallions, and authorizing the TLC to establish

         20  rules for their sale.  By February of 2004, a Final

         21  Environmental Impact Statement was completed by the

         22  City.  In April, 2004, the TLC sold the first 300

         23  medallions.  Unfortunately, only one person

         24  submitted bids for accessible medallions, and none

         25  were actually sold.  In the next fiscal year, in
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          2  October of 2004, the TLC sold another 292

          3  medallions.  We did sell all 27 accessible

          4  medallions, and 19 of the alternative- fuel

          5  medallions.

          6                 Since then, I have come before the

          7  Council on multiple occasions, and I have indicated

          8  that the TLC would look forward to your input as we

          9  planned the sale of the remaining 308 medallions.

         10  Just this past March, I appeared before this

         11  Committee, and announced the TLC's intention to

         12  adhere to the nine percent minimum, and offered 55

         13  accessible and 62 alternative- fuel medallions in

         14  auctions planned for June of 2006.  I made clear our

         15  intention to utilize the auction mode of the October

         16  2004 sale. Also in March of this year, the

         17  Commissioner, through a public rule- making process,

         18  approved new rules for the sale of these medallions.

         19                 But it was only last week that the

         20  TLC was formerly notified that the Council planned

         21  on introducing a bill that could drastically alter

         22  the structure of the sale.  And just six days ago, I

         23  had my first look at the actual legislation.

         24                 Based on preliminary review of the

         25  legislation, and the feedback I have already begun
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          2  to receive from potential bidders, the impact of the

          3  legislation could be significant.  There is a sense

          4  of confusion and disarray among bidders about this

          5  last minute proposal.  In fact, I've had to explain

          6  myself many, many different times during the

          7  seminars and other public appearances I've been

          8  making.  The bill dramatically alters the terms

          9  under which potential medallion bidders are

         10  operating, and it is conceivable that there will be

         11  fewer bidders and bid prices will be lower,

         12  potentially costing the City millions in lost

         13  revenue.

         14                 Also, the TLC may experience

         15  difficulty in attracting independent or individual

         16  owner/driver bidders.  Of the 275 bids that we

         17  received in the last sale for alternative- fuel

         18  medallions and accessible medallions, only four were

         19  from individual owner/drivers.  The rest were from

         20  corporations and fleet- owned operations.

         21                 On the topic of accessible vehicles.

         22  Accessible taxicabs.  Early last year, 27 vehicles

         23  went into service as accessible New York City cabs.

         24  All 27 were rear- entry, Ford Freestars modified by

         25  the same second- stage manufacturer.  Within six to
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          2  eight months, the TLC and vehicle owners began

          3  noting a series of component failures including wear

          4  of the rear brake lines, and structural damage to

          5  the chassis.  Over the past year, the TLC has worked

          6  closely with the owners to our best to ensure that

          7  the vehicles are safe.  We are still evaluating the

          8  full extent and cause of these problems.

          9                 Just last week, the Commission itself

         10  approved rules setting higher standards for

         11  accessible taxicabs.  We hope that these new

         12  standards will lead vehicles to able to be operated

         13  as cabs here in New York City.  But it is important

         14  to note that our Commissioners and the Council,

         15  heard from disabled passengers who raise concerns

         16  about those standards, and whether they would lead

         17  to vehicles that met all of their needs.

         18                 The Commission is committed to

         19  finding the right vehicles to serve as accessible

         20  cabs.  Current medallion sale plans call for

         21  tripling the number of accessible cabs on the

         22  street, and that will help us towards determining

         23  what vehicles will survive over the three to five

         24  year vehicle life that legally cabs are entitled to.

         25    However, we have not found those vehicles yet.
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          2  Adding one hundred more beyond that is too much, too

          3  soon.  In my view.

          4                 In terms of meeting the Citywide

          5  demand for accessible services, the yellow medallion

          6  taxicab industry is an important segment of the

          7  City's transportation network, serving an estimated

          8  650,000 passengers each day.  But there are more

          9  than eight million people living in New York City,

         10  in neighborhoods from Auburndale, to Kingsbridge, to

         11  Greenpoint, to St. George.  Very few of these

         12  neighborhoods have regular taxicab service.  Yet the

         13  people living in them, including those who are

         14  disabled, have real transportation needs.  Providing

         15  truly accessible service means providing service

         16  across the entire City.

         17                 The TLC recognizes this six years

         18  ago, when the Commission passed rules regarding

         19  equivalent service for passengers in wheelchairs for

         20  for- hire vehicle bases.  Since then, the

         21  implementation of this program has presented

         22  challenges.  While all bases are able to now show

         23  proof of their ability to offer service, these

         24  business are not able to provide equivalent services

         25  in all instances, despite their best efforts.  The
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          2  disabled community has made clear that they are not

          3  satisfied with the service offered to them.  And

          4  some segments of the for- hire vehicle industry have

          5  reported, that despite investments in vehicles and

          6  other resources, there is little demand for the

          7  service.

          8                 Providing demand- responsive

          9  transportation services to all passengers in all

         10  parts of the City should be the public policy goal.

         11  By passing and enforcing rules for the FHV industry,

         12  and selling a limited number of accessible taxicab

         13  medallions to help learn which vehicles could work,

         14  the TLC has made some progress.  But there are no

         15  easy or quick answers here.  The TLC is ready to

         16  work with the disabled community, the general riding

         17  public, our regulated industries, and the Council,

         18  to figure out the immediate and long- term next

         19  steps to help us develop a better and more

         20  comprehensive plan to serve all New Yorkers.

         21                 We believe that the full support of

         22  the Council is vital, yet this bill would have

         23  little or no impact on service in parts of the City

         24  that are not widely served by cabs.

         25                 On the topic of alternative- fuel
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          2  taxicabs and medallion.  The goal of a taxicab fleet

          3  is something that TLC is consistently   --  of a

          4  clean taxicab fleet is something that TLC has been

          5  consistently working towards.  First, we instituted

          6  regular vehicle inspections, including a computer-

          7  based test of emissions control component.  This

          8  emissions control test is becoming the standards in

          9  many parts of the country, and the TLC was one of

         10  the first places in New York State to implement it.

         11  It's also known as OBD2.  On- Board Diagnostics.

         12                 Our vehicle retirement rules made the

         13  New York City taxicab fleet arguably the newest

         14  fleet in the country, and probably the world.  Newer

         15  vehicles have meant improved performance and

         16  improved reliability.  And less noxious emissions.

         17                 Several years ago, the TLC took steps

         18  to encourage the use of compressed natural gas

         19  taxicabs.  Despite significant investment from the

         20  taxicab industry, that effort failed.  A vehicle

         21  modifier has recently been federally approved to

         22  outfit the 2006 Ford Crown Victoria for CNG use.

         23  Such vehicles would be eligible for alternative fuel

         24  medallions and the TLC, of course, looks forward to

         25  seeing the results of this new effort.
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          2                 The latest step that we took in the

          3  direction of a cleaner cab fleet, was done last

          4  Fall, with the guidance from the City Council.  The

          5  Commission passed rules waiving various requirements

          6  for hybrid- electric vehicles, and allowing them to

          7  be used as taxicabs.  One rule that was waived,

          8  generally requires the installation of partitions in

          9  cabs to protect drivers.  The Commission, as

         10  recently as last week, has expressed concerns about

         11  encouraging the use of cabs that do not use

         12  partitions.

         13                 Representatives of the taxicab

         14  industry, including a major fleet organization, as

         15  well as an owner/driver organization have voiced

         16  similar concerns.  Fortunately, there have no

         17  fatalities in taxicabs for almost a decade.  In

         18  addition to the excellent performance of the New

         19  York City Police Department, we believe that the use

         20  of safety partitions has been an important part of

         21  that trend.  The hybrid- electric vehicles available

         22  today are not capable of fitting a partition into a

         23  cab without significantly restricting passenger

         24  space.

         25                 This bill would add another hundred,
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          2  almost another hundred cabs without safety

          3  partitions, and that is just simply a too great a

          4  risk to take at this time.

          5                 Hybrid- electric vehicles have been

          6  used as cabs for seven months, and the initial

          7  results are promising.  Drivers are enthusiastic,

          8  passengers seem supportive, and maintenance has not

          9  been an issue.  But we are still at the very early

         10  stages.  By adding up to 62 more vehicles, as we

         11  have planned, the TLC would more than triple the

         12  number of alternative- fuel cabs in service, and

         13  provide a strong base to evaluate their performance

         14  and reliability.  Adding nearly a hundred more

         15  beyond that would push an unnecessarily large number

         16  of unproven vehicles into taxi service.

         17                 In conclusion, I would like to

         18  commend the City Council for taking up the important

         19  and pressing issues of accessible service, as well

         20  as a cleaner taxicab fleet.  The TLC is ready,

         21  willing, and able to work with the Council to

         22  address these issues in an intelligent and

         23  reasonable manner.  But Intro. 339 is a last- minute

         24  measure that has placed the final sale of taxicab

         25  medallions into complete disarray.  This bill would
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          2  prematurely place nearly 200 additional unproven

          3  vehicles into service as taxicabs, without

          4  addressing the important question of how to actually

          5  provide better service to all New Yorkers.

          6  Therefore, in the current form, the TLC must oppose

          7  the legislation.

          8                 But we'd be happy to answer any

          9  questions you have, and of course, to work with the

         10  Council on some of the ideas that I discussed in my

         11  testimony.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         13  Commissioner. Now can we just identify those who are

         14  sitting with you at the witness table?

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.  At my right

         16  is our General Counsel, Chuck Frasier; and at my

         17  left is our First Deputy Commissioner Andrew Salkin.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'd like

         19  to thank them for their time here as well today.  I

         20  also want to welcome some of our colleagues who have

         21  joined us.  We have Council Member Dan Garodnick;

         22  Council Member Gennaro; and Council Member Lapin.

         23  Thank you very much for coming.  Council Member

         24  Mealy.  Good to see you. Thank you very much

         25  colleagues for being here today.

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 Before I get to questions from my

          3  colleagues, a couple of things Commissioner.  You

          4  know, first and foremost, I do appreciate dealing

          5  with  --  let's deal with the common ground first,

          6  and then go forward.  And as you finished up your

          7  testimony, true, we are going to deal with common

          8  ground that we both want to see accessible vehicles

          9  and cleaner you know, vehicles, green taxis.  We'll

         10  deal with that common ground, but we want to go

         11  forward, okay?  But a couple of things.  Of course,

         12  I'm not going to agree with.

         13                 First, the idea of last minute.  In

         14  your testimony, you said you know, this Intro. Would

         15  be less than  --  Intro. 339 would be less than a

         16  month, obviously, before the start of the bids.

         17  Technically, the bids go from June 16th to June

         18  29th.  So obviously, the latter date is a little bit

         19  more than a month.  And as far as the last --  but

         20  as far as why we're doing this, how often do we do

         21  medallion sales?  How often do we do those?

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Not often.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Not

         24  often.  So I could see that the Council is here

         25  taking the opportunity  --  we have an opportunity
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          2  with this sale, before we wait for the next one,

          3  whenever that may be  --  we're going to take the

          4  opportunity here, because we see an opportunity to

          5  do something.  To maybe correct a wrong, or to

          6  improve a situation that we both agree on.

          7  Improving our taxis.  So we're going to take this

          8  opportunity with this sale. And see if we could do

          9  it with this sale, as opposed to waiting for another

         10  one, when we don't know when that's going to be.

         11  Okay?  So respectfully.

         12                 Do you believe that possibly,  --

         13  because you had mentioned the unproven fleet, the

         14  unproven vehicles already out there.  Do you

         15  possibly see that the current vehicles that we have

         16  out there, and there are few, given the total amount

         17  of medallions out there.  The few that are

         18  accessible, the few that are green, okay, fuel

         19  efficient and so forth.  Do you believe that's a

         20  small sample size?   That maybe with this Intro. 339

         21  we can increase the amount of sample size, and then

         22  evaluate it for the next medallion sale, which we

         23  don't know when that's going to be?  But we can

         24  evaluate it up to that point?

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, I think it's
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          2  certainly a manageable sample size.  We believe that

          3  what we've currently planned in part of our

          4  Administrative planning, the 62 and 54 numbers,

          5  which was in the original law that was passed by the

          6  Council several years ago, are what we were planning

          7  on.  And we've made adequate preparations to monitor

          8  those vehicles.  It does involve additional work

          9  than we've been calling them in  --  in light of the

         10  safety and road worthiness issues the accessible

         11  cabs have had, we've been calling them in for more

         12  frequent inspections. We've had to make some

         13  alterations to the lanes, the technology, the way it

         14  was structured.  The lanes was not geared up for

         15  accessible retrofitted vehicles.  And hybrid

         16  vehicles.  In fact, one of those vehicles, we had to

         17  make some alterations so that it didn't come off the

         18  ramp and to into the next car as we were testing the

         19  emissions, because you have to spin the wheels.

         20                 Long story short, we believe that

         21  it's administratively more manageable and -- .  You

         22  know, on the point of process, you know, of course,

         23  you know, the policy objectives, I would agree with

         24  you, are the most important things.  But if, you

         25  know, I'm just pointing out to the Council that if
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          2  we had maybe two or three or four months notice on

          3  the bill, to have a discussion would have created

          4  less confusion.  Right now, you know, we're doing

          5   --  running advertisements all over the City.  It's

          6  on TV, it's in ethnic papers.  They're all over the

          7  place.  We just held seminars the other day.  And

          8  the number one questions is, are we selling

          9  medallions, and how many?  And I had to explain.

         10  And there are people that call, and people I meet on

         11  the street.  Drivers and potential bidders.  That's

         12  the only point I'm bringing up.

         13                 I agree with you, it is historic, and

         14  it's not something that's not done every day, but if

         15  we had maybe a couple of more months notice to have

         16  this discussion, we would have appreciated that.

         17  But nevertheless, you know, we'd like to talk about

         18  the policies.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The

         20  amount of vehicles already out there, both

         21  accessible and green taxis, the ones that had to be

         22  repaired, or the ones that you are addressing for

         23  repair, do you know, of the total amount that are

         24  out there, that fall into those categories, the

         25  percentage of which are being repaired?  I mean,
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          2  it's not 75 percent, 90 percent.  We're talking one

          3  percent, two percent?  Or do we know that?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: My understanding

          5  is that almost all of the 27 vehicles that are out

          6  there, had similar problems. They had brake

          7  failures, and they also had broken chassis.  And

          8  now, these are things that we made sure that they

          9  were repaired, and they're still out on the road.

         10  But as a result of those things, that usually only

         11  happen after a vehicle has been in cab service for

         12  maybe you know, three or four year, you don't see

         13  that type of thing happening.

         14                 I mean, I've been at the TLC for ten

         15  years, and you know, every once in a while, we would

         16  hear of a vehicle coming in for inspection with a

         17  broken chassis.  And those were actually things that

         18  I heard when we were transitioning into the vehicle

         19  retirement laws.  These were cars that were six,

         20  seven, eight, nine years old.  We don't hear that

         21  that often.  So that caused concern. I mean, that's

         22  really the percentage.  It's a high percentage if

         23  not all, almost of them, as far as I checked.  But

         24  they are on the road, and they have been repaired.

         25  But we're going to call them in more frequently.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Knowing

          3  what we already do about those that have been

          4  repaired, I believe that's helpful. Should we go

          5  forward with Intro. 339.  Obviously, we can earmark,

          6  possibly, or keep an eye on these problems with the

          7  breaks and the chassis.  So knowing of these repairs

          8  could be quite helpful for the future, correct?

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.  We'd be

         10  happy to share that information with you.  In fact,

         11  the Commission just passed rules last week that

         12  provide for a higher standard.  Part of the

         13  problems, I believe, is that the vehicles that's

         14  coming off the assembly line do not have wheelchair

         15  ramps installed.  That is the ultimate problem that

         16  creates extra costs, that we believe, the

         17  retrofitting creates the additional possibility for

         18  more wear and tear.

         19                 The vehicles that are on the road

         20  now, the 27 that we had problems with, were all done

         21  by second- stage manufacturers, independent from

         22  Ford, obviously, who are not approved by Ford, and

         23  he guidelines by which they are retrofitting the

         24  vehicle are not approved in accordance with the

         25  manufacturer's program.
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          2                 We passed rules last week which would

          3  require that if there's any accessible cabs on the

          4  road in the future, that they have to be retrofitted

          5  by a secondary manufacturer that's in accordance

          6  with the guidelines and the program set up by the

          7  original vehicle manufacturer.  And that has two

          8  tiers to it. Number one, the engineers from Ford and

          9  Chrysler, and these other companies, they sit down

         10  and they say, what's the best way to retrofit this

         11  vehicle so that the warranty is not voided, and so

         12  that we have confidence in putting our stamp of

         13  approval on it? So that we can back up the warranty.

         14                 And number two, they actually certify

         15  the people doing the work.  The people doing the

         16  work conceivably could not be, under the old system,

         17  anyone who the manufacturer approves of. And they

         18  may not be capable of doing it.  And they may be

         19  selling consumers a bad bill of goods.  So we

         20  believe that those guidelines and standards, which

         21  are higher, will ultimately lead to a better

         22  vehicle, which will, of course, you know, hopefully

         23  lead to a road worthy vehicle that doesn't break

         24  down.

         25                 We have similar standards in place,
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          2  by the way, for stretch limousines.  The same system

          3  has been in place for several years.  If you want to

          4  stretch your limousine out, you can only do it if

          5  the manufacturers, secondary manufacturers, is

          6  approved by the original manufacturer, and if it's

          7  done in accordance with the program.  It's a similar

          8  system.  It has worked well so far.  So we

          9  replicated that last week.

         10                 And there are going to be vehicles

         11  available, by the way.  For the sale.  We have the

         12  Chevy Uplander, and two manufacturers that are

         13  approved by Chevy to do the work.  So that's a

         14  start.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank

         16  you.  I do have some further questions.  I'd like to

         17  hear from my colleagues.  So Council Member Gennaro.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you Mr.

         19  Chairman.

         20                 Thank you Commissioner.  Really to

         21  follow up a little bit on what you were just talking

         22  about, with regard to the cabs, the 27 that have the

         23  disabled access.  For the TLC to sell any further

         24  medallions for cabs like that, based on your new

         25  rules, the vendor who sold the 27 will not be able
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          2  to sell those, because they don't meet your

          3  standards of having the you know, retrofitter, or

          4  whatever, be sanctioned by the company?  I'm trying

          5  to find out how we go forward from this point. You

          6  indicated that pursuant to your new rules, you can

          7  no longer have vehicles that are made wheelchair

          8  accessible via some entity that is not sanctioned by

          9  the manufacturer.  Is that right?

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, the majority

         11    --  all of the vehicles on the road actually are

         12  Ford Freestars.  Ford does not currently have a

         13  program in place.  Chevy does.  That doesn't mean

         14  that tomorrow, in response to the rules that we

         15  passed, which often happens in our industry, that

         16  the various manufacturers would ask to develop a

         17  program.  I mean, Ford has a program in place for

         18  stretch limos.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.  But

         20  the 27 vehicles that were out there were done

         21  pursuant to like an earlier version of a rule that

         22  didn't provide for --

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  --  As

         25  strict a monitoring of who is doing the work, right?
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          2    I mean, those 27 that are on the road now, they

          3  were retrofitted pursuant to guidelines or whatever

          4  rules that you had put out, which you just made more

          5  strict.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well actually,

          7  this is a new process.  This had never been done

          8  before.  There weren't accessible vehicles on the

          9   --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: But how did

         11  the 27 get out there?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: They got out there

         13  because we approved them in accordance with old

         14  standards, which were experimental by  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Fine.  Okay.

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:  --  By any

         17  stretch of the imagination.  And if you  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: But going

         19  forward, --

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: If I could Council

         21  Member, just to give you some background  --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Sure.

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: You know, these

         24  retrofitters are around the country, if not around

         25  the world.  And in Canada and so forth, and they do
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          2  work there.  And you know, it's different operating

          3  a yellow cab in New York City, on the road 24 hours

          4  a day, seven days a week, than it is in some of

          5  these cities.  We relied on a lot of the research

          6  that we had obtained from different cities and

          7  states to give these cabs a try in the City of New

          8  York. And we watched them closely, and they just

          9  didn't perform.  And I had indicated at every series

         10  of testimony that I had ever given to the Council,

         11  concerns about it, and want to make sure that we

         12  monitored them closely.  And low and behold, it

         13  looks like those concerned showed true.  So we're

         14  doing something about it, and  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Talk to me

         16  about Chevy, and what they're doing.  And what they

         17  have.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, Chevy has an

         19  Uplander, which we believe is the best vehicle that

         20  we've seen out there so far, that's presented  --

         21  been presented to us for approval.  And it has two

         22  manufacturers that are approved by them.  I think

         23  it's Eldorado and Braun.  And they have programs in

         24  place.  And there are also a few other vehicles that

         25  we understand are going to be making their way
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          2  towards us for approval.  So now that we've passed

          3  the rules, we know at least there are a few

          4  retrofitters out there, and it's our hope that in

          5  the coming months, we'll see a few more vehicles

          6  being presented.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: So you just

          8  did the rules, so what you have to do now is you'd

          9  have to take a look at the Chevy product and you

         10  would have to approve it?

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: When we pass the

         12  rules, we put specifications in place, and these

         13  vehicles meet the specs. Anybody else, at any other

         14  manufacturer that wish to meet those specs, everyone

         15  is on an equal playing field.  I mean, we'd like to

         16  see as many different types of vehicles out there

         17  that meet the specs as possible.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay.  I just

         19  want to jump over to the fuel- efficient cabs.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Sure.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: And with

         22  regard to the partitions, is there any possibility

         23  that any time soon, we could see a hybrid vehicle

         24  that would be able to be retrofitted with a

         25  partition?  Is there any manufacturer out there that
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          2  could currently do that?

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, it's our

          4  hope that in the next year or so, we will see the

          5  hybrids in light of the marketplace, changing to be

          6  built a little bit bigger, so that we can fit the

          7  partitions in.  Promising news is that we just

          8  approved the Toyota Camry, which is actually around

          9  the size of the Crown Victorias that were out there

         10  before we stretched them.  So that's actually the

         11  biggest hybrid we now have on the road.  So I think

         12   -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: The Camry.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I mean, you're  --

         15    we approved the Toyota Camry.  It met our specs,

         16  basically.  And we told the industry that if you

         17  want to buy it and use it as a cab, you can use it.

         18  So that's a perfect example of a car that already,

         19  after less than a year of doing this, the

         20  marketplace is responding.  Not just to us, you

         21  know, with all due respects, they're responding to

         22  the passenger demand because of the high price of

         23  fuel for everyone.  But we're in the right place at

         24  the right time.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Would that be
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          2  big enough to accommodate a partition, in your

          3  judgement?  The Camry?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: You know, it's

          5  hard  --  I mean, a little bit more room would be

          6  better.  I think I'd rather give a little bit more

          7  room to passengers, if we could.  And not place the

          8  individual owners, or taxicab owners in the

          9  uncomfortable position of choosing between

         10  protecting their drivers and protecting their

         11  passengers.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Would it be

         13  the TLC's goal to, once you have hybrids that are

         14  big enough to have the partition, to put that rule

         15  back in place, where you have to have the partition?

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I would personally

         17  love to do that, and discuss it with the Board of

         18  Commissioners.  I mean, we're optimistic.  I mean,

         19  you have an environmental background. You know,

         20  you're Chair of a Committee.  I think you realize

         21  even better than I do, that there's a lot going on

         22  in the manufacturing world right now.  While maybe

         23  two, three years ago, this may have seemed like pie

         24  in the sky, necessity has led to innovations, and

         25  will, over the next year.  So I think it is prudent,
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          2  when talking about this bill, for us to really try

          3  to make sure we get the right vehicle out there.  We

          4  do too much, too fast, and these people are going to

          5  be stuck with vehicles like we have these 27 that

          6  are on the road now, that are causing problems.

          7                 I think the same goes for the

          8  alterative fuel.  I mean, let's  --  I mean, we're

          9  not talking about three, four, five years now.

         10  We're talking about maybe a year, another year.  I

         11  would like to get more feedback.  And if the results

         12  are positive --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: And if we

         14  sell the medallions as an alternative fuel, low

         15  fuel, then as the marketplace goes forward, and as

         16  there are more vehicles, it would seem to me that

         17  these medallions would be a bargain.  Right? Because

         18  the marketplace for hybrids a year from now, 18

         19  months from now, is not what it's like now.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well the less we

         21  have now, the more of a bargain it is.  The more it

         22  becomes mainstream, the less of a bargain it is.  I

         23  mean, the more  --  you know, the more hybrids

         24  become you know, more economical for people, and the

         25  more they're out there, and if we find one that
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          2  meets the general needs of the fleets,  --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: But you have

          4  already, right? You've identified cabs with  --

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: But the law, the

          6  way it was written, and our rules, you know, unless

          7  you're buying an alternative fuel medallion that

          8  requires you to use a hybrid or CNG vehicle, you

          9  basically are left to the voluntary system.  I mean,

         10  if you want to purchase one, I mean, there are

         11  obviously tax incentives, and other incentives to

         12  buy them.  But the Commission has not passed rules

         13  mandating them yet.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: But I'm

         15  trying to figure out what the opposition would be to

         16  an attempt to sell that number of you know, clean

         17  fuel medallions.  Why would people not want to buy

         18  the most  --  you know, with gas $3.00 a gallon, and

         19  with the certainty that vehicles in the hybrid

         20  classification will be better and more available and

         21  bigger, why would someone not buy those medallions?

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, that's a

         23  fair question. But we're looking at it in terms of

         24  not whether they would or would not buy it.  We're

         25  looking at it in terms of other obligations as a
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          2  Commission that we have. I had a very lengthy debate

          3  at our last Commission meeting with the

          4  Commissioners, who were very, very concerned about

          5  eroding the partition requirement.  I mean, knock on

          6  wood, there hasn't been a homicide of a yellow cab

          7  driver in the last year.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: No, no.  I'm

          9  very sensitive to the partition issue, which is why

         10  I brought it up.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: But that's the

         12  number one concern.  The safety of the driver,

         13  especially if there's a possibility and likelihood,

         14  which I believe there is, that over the next year or

         15  two, the cars will be made a little bigger.  And

         16  hopefully, we will have a taxi package vehicle.  The

         17  Crown Vic (sic) is a perfect example of what Ford

         18  has done over the years to respond to concerns that

         19  the industry has.  They actually built the Ford

         20  Crown Vic to be a cab.  To withstand the rigors of

         21  the road. We would like to see  --  and I actually

         22  had a long conversation with Bill Ford a few months

         23  ago about this and he told me he would look into it.

         24    And he told me that he would you know, basically

         25   -- and we've talked to other manufacturers as well
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          2   --  would look into that possibility.  We're

          3  optimistic.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: The

          5  possibility of doing a hybrid Crown Vic that was

          6  also like the taxi version, or whatever?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We would love to

          8  see that.  That would actually solve the problem in

          9  many respects.  Because right now, the only reason

         10  I'm advising against this bill is because you don't

         11  want to do too much too fast.  Even though the first

         12  few months have been promising, the hybrid-

         13  electrics haven't been built off the assembly line

         14  to be cabs.  So we want to be cautiously optimistic

         15  about it.  We want to watch it over the next six

         16  months, eight months, and make sure that we don't

         17  have the same type of mechanical failures and road

         18  worthiness issues that we have with the accessibles.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay.  I

         20  would like to sort of partner with you in your

         21  efforts to speak to Mr. Ford and I'll bother you for

         22  his contact information, you know, after the

         23  hearing.  And I can  --

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Sure.  Well

         25  Council Member Yassky has it, so I think he was in
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          2  the room at the time.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: What's that?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I think Council

          5  Member Yassky was there for the conversation as

          6  well.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Oh, I see.

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.  I'll get you

          9  the information.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay.  Thank

         11  you Commissioner.

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Okay.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         14  Council Member Gennaro.  Council Member Lappin.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you Mr.

         16  Chairman.

         17                 There are approximately 60,000 people

         18  in this City who are in wheelchairs.  And one of the

         19  reasons I'm a co- sponsor of this bill is because I

         20  believe that those individuals have a right, the way

         21  I do, to go to a movie, to meet a friend for dinner,

         22  to lead a normal life.  And not have to schedule

         23  everything a week in advance and depend on Access-

         24  A- Ride to pick them up.

         25                 How many vehicles are in the fleet
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          2  now?  Taxis only? Total?  How many are out on the

          3  street?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Over 12,700.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And of the

          6  12,700 how many of those are disabled- accessible?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Twenty seven.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Twenty seven.

          9  So that means, for those give or take 60,000 people,

         10  they have to try  --  it's like finding a needle in

         11  a haystack  --  to hail one of those 27 vehicles.

         12  Which is why we're here today.  Prior to 2003, when

         13  was the last time we were authorized to auction off

         14  medallions?

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: 1996.  It was in

         16  the mid- 90s.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So  --  the

         18  mid 90s.  So --

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: And before that,

         20  it was the 1940s.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Well I think

         22  that goes exactly to the point that I wanted to

         23  make, which is, these auctions don't happen very

         24  often.  And as you stated, it seems like it's only a

         25  year or two down the pike before we have vehicles
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          2  that really can be potentially mass produced.  And I

          3  would say, we don't get too many opportunities to

          4  get people to purchase medallions for either

          5  accessible or hybrid vehicles.  And we should take

          6  advantage of this opportunity, particularly if they

          7  don't come around very often.

          8                 So I guess I'm not understanding.  If

          9  there are vehicles out there, vehicles that work in

         10  other cities, vehicles that you guys have approved,

         11  where the real opposition lies. Because we've been

         12  waiting a long time.  And the disabled community has

         13  been waiting a long time.  And a war in Iraq over

         14  oil.  So I guess I see this as a real opportunity,

         15  and I'm not sure why we wouldn't want to seize upon

         16  it.

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well I think I

         18  would agree with you on everything you just said.

         19  But I still think that having let's say, according

         20  to this bill, 154 accessible cabs out of 12,000 is

         21  still like finding a needle in a haystack.  So I

         22  don't think that really solves the problem.

         23                 We've taken the viewpoint that when

         24  this legislation was passed, this is an opportunity

         25  for us to test these vehicles. And we're still in

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  that frame of mind.  I would agree with you that

          3  disabled passengers, they should be getting the

          4  service.  They should be getting better service than

          5  they're getting now.  We try as hard as we could in

          6  the for- hire industry to make a system work over

          7  there.  And I'm happy to say that now, we have

          8  service there, where we had none before.  But it's

          9  not the service that disabled New Yorkers deserve.

         10  You shouldn't have to wait longer than anybody else,

         11  or make appointments, like you do through Access- A

         12  Ride.  This was not designed to be an Access- A-

         13  Ride service.  Our for- hire system, and the hail

         14  system for taxicabs was designed to give, for a

         15  premium dollar, or more money that you would pay for

         16  public transportation, more convenience and

         17  accessible service.  So they have a right to be

         18  angry.  They have a right to be frustrated. I'm

         19  equally frustrated with the obstacles that we

         20  continue to face.             There are rules that

         21  were passed, like I said in my testimony, in 2000

         22  that we tried to make work.  Now, they're working

         23  better than  --  and you know, and there's service

         24  now that there wasn't before, but they're still not

         25  the ideal of where we should be.
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          2                 So that's why, as I said in my

          3  testimony, we should work together to develop a

          4  comprehensive plan that would take whatever yellow

          5  cabs that are out there, and whatever livery

          6  accessible vehicles that work and are viable out

          7  there, and try to come up with a comprehensive plan

          8  to provide better service.

          9                 Putting 100, 200, 300 accessible cabs

         10  on the street is not going to make a difference in

         11  the life of somebody who is disabled.  You have to

         12  really come up with something that's a little bit

         13  more demand- responsive, or in tune with their

         14  needs.  It will still be a needle in a haystack,

         15  whether it's 100, 200, 300, even 400.  It will still

         16  be difficult.  We need to look at other options and

         17  think outside the box.  If we're willing to do that,

         18  and the Administration is willing to talk to the

         19  Council about that.

         20                 But in terms of this bill, I can't

         21  support it the way it's written.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I mean, yes.

         23  This is only going to modestly improve the

         24  situation.  But it is, I think, would improve the

         25  situation, because you can't improve service if
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          2  there aren't vehicles for people to use.  So if

          3  there are only 27 vehicles out there, I'm not sure

          4  how we're going to come together and create a plan

          5  that really improves service.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I'm a little bit

          7  more optimistic than that.  I think we can come up

          8  with something.  And I think we need to rethink what

          9  has been done over the last five to six years. I

         10  mean, the Council has been a partner in this process

         11  from the beginning, with the TLC.  We have a couple

         12  of major obstacles.  You know, the biggest obstacle

         13  is the vehicle issue.  And I think, in terms of

         14  dealing with vehicles that we're comfortable with,

         15  we can figure out a way to make sure that people get

         16  more better and more equivalent service in the

         17  demand- responsive arena.

         18                 To have one, two, or three needles in

         19  a haystack is not going to solve the problem.  But I

         20  do agree in principle with everything that you said.

         21    And I support it.  I just can't support this bill.

         22    I don't believe that the numbers are going to make

         23  a difference.  It's only going to create more

         24  complications in terms of monitoring these vehicles,

         25  and it may spark a disinterest of potential bidders.
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          2    I think we're better off just sticking with the

          3  plan, moving forward, selling the medallions.  And

          4  immediately start discussions on how we can come up

          5  with a better overall transportation plan that kind

          6  of marries, like I said in my testimony, the for-

          7  hire industry work that we've done over the years,

          8  with the cabs that we now have on the streets.  And

          9  we will be tripling the numbers.  You know, I mean,

         10  for what it's worth, I mean, we're going to end up

         11  with you know, ultimately, 81 in total.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Well I guess

         13  we'll just have to agree to disagree.  Because while

         14  I would welcome the opportunity to work together to

         15  develop a plan that would improve service, I can

         16  agree with Council Member Gennaro, I think that

         17  people will purchase these medallions.  I don't

         18  think these opportunities come along very often.  I

         19  think we should seize upon it.  And I think that

         20  people who do purchase the medallions now, are

         21  getting a bargain.  And in a year, or two, their

         22  going to see a return on that investment.  Thank

         23  you.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         25  Council Member Lappin, and again, let me reiterate
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          2  my position as well.  Intro. 339 is taking advantage

          3  of a situation regarding this sale, when we don't

          4  know when the next medallion sale is going to be. So

          5  I think it is timely.  Council Member Martinez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you

          7  Mr. Chair.

          8                 You know, I'm particularly concerned,

          9  after hearing the Commissioner say that one, we're

         10  looking at other alternatives. But I don't get the

         11  sense that the Administration is looking to take

         12  responsibility for what we're facing.  The fact

         13  that, you know, we're trying to make an effort to

         14  start addressing an important issue.  And to say

         15  that, you know, we're basically not going to do

         16  anything by increasing the amount of wheelchair

         17  accessible vehicles.  You know, it's concerning, and

         18  it's a problem.  Because as you mentioned, the last

         19  time was 1990.  And after that, it was the '40s.

         20  That definitely concerns me.  And it's further

         21  concerning to me, from your testimony, that here

         22  we're talking about New York City Taxi and Limousine

         23  Commission is testifying that 27 vehicles were sold

         24  and I believe Ford was the company for the

         25  accessible vehicles?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: As a result,

          4  only started noticing damages to the chassis and

          5  issue with the brake line.  I cannot believe that in

          6  New York City, the Taxi and Limousine Commission

          7  cannot commission a study to tell us what was the

          8  problem with the chassis.  Was it the weight?  Was

          9  it the material? And you're telling us that you're

         10  still evaluating to the full extent, the cause of

         11  the problem.  Who is evaluating that?  Why isn't

         12  there a commission looking at this, of the

         13  manufacturer, and with the technology and the

         14  advancements that we have with vehicles, especially

         15  when it comes to chassis.  I hear all the time when

         16  a new vehicle is out, and the minimum problem, the

         17  littlest problem with a new vehicle, we have a

         18  recall and they have a solution for it.

         19                 How come we haven't had a solution to

         20  address those problems that we have with the 27

         21  vehicles?  And also, Commissioner, you know, to say

         22  that there isn't a demand and for us to read from

         23  the Council's briefing, that Access- A- Ride weekly,

         24  has 10,500 rides for these individuals that Council

         25  Member Lappin mentioned, 60,000, that need to
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          2  commute throughout the City, there are 10,500 rides

          3  per week.  There is the demand out there.  And if we

          4    --  well, I'm looking at per week, so the document

          5  that we got. Some members of the community say per

          6  day.  So there is absolutely a demand.  And I'm

          7  really concerned Mr. Chair, that the testimony we're

          8  getting from the Administration  --  they're not

          9  looking to take responsibility on this issue.

         10                 And I'm further concerned that we're

         11  looking at putting the burden maybe on another

         12  industry or the private sector to do this, when the

         13  Administration should be addressing this issue.  And

         14  it doesn't sound like we're looking to take

         15  responsibility to address this issue.

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I would disagree

         17  with you, respectfully, on that.  I mean, I take

         18  responsibility for giving the system that was in

         19  place a try.  If you go back in history, the rules

         20  that we put in place in the for- hire vehicle

         21  industry were rules that were passed by the prior

         22  Mayoral Administration, and by the prior Council.

         23                 I was working at the TLC at the time,

         24  I had a knowledge of it, and I had recommended that

         25  we give these rules a try, and try to enforce the
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          2  equivalent service rules we put into place.  And I

          3  remember, you know, some of the first days that you

          4  were on the Council, talking to the folks here about

          5  it, and Chairman Liu.  And we gave it our best

          6  effort.

          7                 Is it working to the extent that we

          8  have service where there was no service to disabled

          9  passengers in the for- hire world?  Yes.  You can

         10  call and get service.  But is it equivalent? Is it

         11  what you and I get?  Or is it what disabled New

         12  Yorkers are entitled to?  No.  And I think we need

         13  to revisit that.  I think part of taking

         14  responsibility and part of government, is to realize

         15  when you can do better.  I wouldn't say it was a

         16  failure.  I wouldn't say that were not taking  --

         17  of course we're taking responsibility.  If you read

         18  my testimony, we're taking responsibility for the

         19  fact that it didn't turn out as well as it could

         20  have.  And we're going to try to do something new.

         21                 I just don't think that the yellow

         22  cab industry and new medallions is a panacea.  I

         23  don't think it's going to solve all of our problems.

         24

         25                 I mean, in terms of studies, I mean
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          2  we know what the problem is.  It's the retrofit and

          3  the way the vehicle is retrofitted that is most

          4  likely the result of the broken chassis. We don't

          5  have engineers that work for us, but we report those

          6  incidents to the manufacturers, and it's our job  --

          7    we have mechanics who work for us.  I mean, our

          8  safety inspections  -- safety and emissions

          9  inspectors are mechanically trained.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: How come you

         11  haven't commissioned a study?  If we identified the

         12  problem, what's the solution?

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We came up with a

         14  solution last week.  We passed rules that we believe

         15  are tackling that problem that we faced.  We said a

         16  few years ago, we'd try the vehicles out. We passed

         17  laws putting more accessible  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: That's not

         19  what I'm saying Commissioner.  I'm saying, if it's

         20  broken, if the chassis bends for whatever issue that

         21  retrofitting  --  how do we make that chassis strong

         22  enough for it not to bend for example?  What

         23  material do we need to use?  Who's giving us these

         24  answers?   And does the Commission  --  does the

         25  Taxi Limousine Commission has within its

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  jurisdiction and budgetary constraint the ability

          3   --  and have you done it in the past, to commission

          4  a commission to come in, and do a study?

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well we did

          6  research, and we believe we came up with the best

          7  approach to solve the problem. And we think it's

          8  going to work.  And that is basically requiring that

          9  the retrofitters be people who are approved by the

         10  people designing the vehicle.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But you

         12  still haven't answered my question.

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: With all due

         14  respect, I think I have.  We believe that we've

         15  taken a step last week to solve this problem,

         16  because the problem, we believe, is caused by the

         17  retrofit that was done not in accordance with the

         18  manufacturer's program. We put rules into effect,

         19  Council Member, last week that require that it be

         20  done at a higher standard, with engineering plans

         21  done by the original person who manufactured the

         22  car.  It's something that has been proven to work in

         23  the stretch limousine industry, and that's what our

         24  proposed solution to the problem is.              Is

         25  it going to necessarily guarantee that there won't
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          2  be a problem in the future?  I don't know.  You can

          3  only hope for the best.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But I was

          5  trying to get at more, you know, rather than say we

          6  found it, and these are the recommendation we're

          7  making, getting an expert, an expert, to tell us, or

          8  tell you, if you're going to go ahead and sell

          9  additional medallions for vehicles that are

         10  accessible, these are the criterias (sic) and this

         11  is what need to happen from the manufacturer.

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We did.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: That's what

         14  I wanted to hear.

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I'm sorry. I may

         16  have misunderstood.  We had a very, very intense

         17  public hearing last week, where we  --  our expert,

         18  Peter Shankman, the Assistant Commissioner for

         19  Safety and Emissions, consulted with a variety of

         20  people, visited and learned more about these

         21  vehicles, looked at them, and gave a presentation,

         22  as an expert, to the Commission, recommending that

         23  we go down this road.  And we were satisfied with

         24  that, for now.  And that's where we're going.

         25                 So I hope that answers your question.
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          2    I'm sorry if there's any confusion.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Okay.  Now,

          4  when you mention  --  so your testimony in term that

          5  you're still evaluating, you already have a proposed

          6  solution for that.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.  But we're

          8  still in evaluation mode.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Okay.  I

         10  would  --  so in the process  --  you mentioned that

         11  you  --  and I would stand with the Chairman's

         12  statement, the intent of the Committee and the

         13  Council is not to create chaos or make the process

         14  difficult.  But addressing a real situation that

         15  needs to be addressed.  So I'm just wondering if you

         16  could just tell me briefly, in 2004, there were no

         17  accessible medallions sold, right?  No one  --  only

         18  one submitted a  --  responded, but none sold.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But then you

         21  had the following auction, and you had  --  that's

         22  when you sold the 27. Why  --  you had interest in

         23  the first one, you didn't have interest.  Is there a

         24  PR  --

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No.  It actually
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          2  was  --  the way we did our auction procedures, the

          3  Local Law that the Council passed when we first did

          4  this  --  I mean, this is new to all of us.  It had

          5  a provision that was inserted in there that said, if

          6  the average purchase price of other types of

          7  medallions is a certain amount, that we couldn't

          8  sell the accessible and alternative fuel medallions

          9  as such, unless it was at, I think, at least 90

         10  percent of that average price.  It kind of  --  I

         11  think it tried to link the price of the medallion at

         12  the auction to the ability to sell accessible and

         13  alternative fuel medallions.

         14                 And we you know, read the Council's

         15  law quite literally, and applied it.  It didn't

         16  work.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: That was the

         18  first time.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That was the first

         20  time.  Then we went back to the drawing board, and

         21  we developed a system which worked well.  We held

         22  separate auctions, and we passed rules that

         23  disregarded that 90 percent threshold.  So now we've

         24  kind of created separate markets for these

         25  medallions, and that's what I propose that we do
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          2  going forward, this sale as well.  Because it worked

          3  good in the last sale.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So then I

          5  want to go back to your point.  Because I just

          6  thought that there was no  --  you explained that

          7  carefully, but if we do that, in terms of  --  so

          8  you disagree that it should be you know, the 308,

          9  right?  Be divided accessible and alternative fuel.

         10  But if we increase  -- which they're both in point,

         11  but in addressing the issue of the accessibility, if

         12  we increase the amount of the medallions that are

         13  going to be sold for a vehicle that are accessible,

         14  doing it through this process, don't you think we'll

         15  get that same response? For that amount of

         16  medallions?  So your main concern is just that we're

         17  not ready, and the vehicles may not  --

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's my main

         19  concern.  That's really what it comes down to.  I

         20  think we're still in experimental mode.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Let me  --

         22  from my benefit, let me just get that straight.  So

         23  the opposition is not that there isn't a market out

         24  there.  It's just that you're concerned in terms of

         25  the performance of the vehicle being tested.       COMMISSIONER
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          2  DAUS: That's accurate.  That's the biggest concern.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But we do

          4  have a market out there for it.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, the last

          6  sale demonstrated there is a market for it.  But the

          7  market is mostly fleets, just so you know.  I mean,

          8  there is basically one big fleet owner that bought

          9  almost all of them.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Independent

         11   --

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: But there were you

         13  know, individuals that bid on it, but they didn't

         14  bid high enough.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But there's

         16  interest.

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Oh yes, there's

         18  interest.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: From both

         20  fleet and individual.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: There's interest,

         22  there's no question about it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Okay.  Thank

         24  you Mr. Chair.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you
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          2  Council Member Martinez.  We've been joined by one

          3  of our co- sponsors of Intro. 339, Council Member

          4  Yassky.  Council Member Yassky.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

          6  much Chair. Chair Addabbo, Chair Gennaro for holding

          7  this hearing.  He's not here.  But thank him anyway,

          8  please.  Good afternoon Mr. Chair.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good

         10  afternoon.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: As you know,

         12  it is my belief that we are now at a point where

         13  within really a few years, every single taxicab in

         14  the City can be fuel efficient.  The technology is

         15  there, nobody needs to you know, junk a car that's

         16  on the road today, prematurely.  Of course not.  But

         17  we are now at a point where as the taxicab owners go

         18  through their usual replacement cycles, it should be

         19  our goal, my belief, it should the goal of the City,

         20  the Commission, the City Council, the Mayor, of

         21  course, that every cab that's purchased is a fuel

         22  efficient car.

         23                 Now it's also a goal, of course, to

         24  make sure that the fleet is accessible.  And I

         25  recognize that that is a harder thing to achieve at
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          2  this time.  And that it may well be that what we

          3  want to do is ensure that there's a significant

          4  level of accessibility, and those cars may not be

          5  able to be fuel efficient, and then every other car

          6  should be fuel efficient.  Maybe that's the way to

          7  go.  I think there's a real question that has to be

          8  figured out about how to get enough accessibility so

          9  that the disabled community has full access, full

         10  ability to go wherever they want to go, wherever

         11  anyone needs to go.

         12                 That's the framework I'm starting

         13  from.  And I will say, in that  -- since that is the

         14  framework, I certainly co sponsor 339.  It's not  --

         15    I don't think actually there's a big urgency about

         16  this sale, or not this sale.  Of course, I'm happy

         17  to do it.  I'd love to see it affect this sale.  But

         18  the reality is, since what I am not just hoping, but

         19  working hard to see, is that we pass legislation

         20  that affects the entire fleet out there, the entire

         21  group of cabs on the street.  You know, whether it's

         22  these medallions  --  whether you do it for this

         23  auction or not, I hope that in the very near future,

         24  we're going to get something that affects every

         25  medallion.  The ones that you're about to sell, the
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          2  ones you sold last year, and the ones that were sold

          3  years and years ago.

          4                 So in that context, I think to me,

          5  it's not a sense of urgency around this particular

          6  deadline, but there is an urgency about getting

          7  going immediately.  Toward that goal.

          8                 I just want to ask you this.  I know

          9  that you have some discussion about the numbers, and

         10  what's going to be  -- given the current set up,

         11  where it's an option for owners to go fuel

         12  efficient, but they're not required to, how long do

         13  you think it will take before the you know, half the

         14  cabs are fuel efficient?

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, I think it's

         16  hard to say. I mean, I'd rather not speculate.  I

         17  mean, I want to you know, thank you Council Member,

         18  first of all,

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And by the

         20  way, let me say again, I know that you have now

         21  received, deservedly, national acclaim.  I mean, I'm

         22  proud as a New Yorker, that our TLC Commissioner is

         23  looked to, throughout the country, and looked upon

         24  as a leader in pushing for fuel efficiency.  I think

         25  that's a terrific thing for New Yorkers.  I
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          2  certainly am proud that you're the Commissioner, and

          3  I'm sure many New Yorkers are.

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well thank you.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You beat

          6  me to the punch.  I was just about to --

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: And I wanted to

          8  say publicly Council Member that I believe that you

          9  know, we wouldn't be where we are if it wasn't for

         10  you and your persistence.  And while we may agree to

         11  disagree on how we get there, I think the goals are

         12  shared, there's no question about it.  Before you

         13  came into the room, we were just talking about the

         14  conversation you and I had with Bill Ford.  You

         15  know, the day we did a press conference a few months

         16  ago, where I said, Bill, why can't we just build a

         17  hybrid off the assembly line?  He said, I'll look

         18  into it.  So I haven't heard anything back yet, but

         19  we hope he's looking into it.

         20                 And when it comes to hybrids, I'd

         21  rather not  -- with all due respect, Council Member,

         22  speculate on how many are going to be out there.  I

         23  think a lot is going to happen.  A lot has happened

         24  over the last six months.  A lot is going to happen

         25  with what's going on nationally and internationally.
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          2    With the price of fuel, and how manufacturers who

          3  are in competition with each other are responding to

          4  the needs of all Americans, quite frankly.

          5                 So I think that we're kind of in the

          6  right place at the right time, and I think we need

          7  to take the bull by the horns, and I have no doubt

          8  that working together, we'll be able to do that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, well

         10  thank you.  I don't  --  I know there's been a lot

         11  of discussion here, and I don't need to belabor it.

         12  I just would say I really look forward to continuing

         13  to work with you and I think the entire Council will

         14  start working here with you to figure out a way that

         15  we can do it. Because I do not believe that you

         16  know, that what we have in place is enough to push

         17  that efficiency law forward.  I just think that you

         18  know, you're going to see owners   --   just inertia

         19  is such a powerful factor.  You have a Crown Vic,

         20  it's time to get a new one. You go out and you get

         21  the same car.  I get that.  I understand that in my

         22  own life.  Inertia is the  --  you know, a very

         23  powerful factor.  That's where there's a role to

         24  play for the government. And you know, I do think

         25  that we need to adjust the incentives in the  --

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  out there available to cab owners so that there's a

          3  real powerful incentive to move toward fuel

          4  efficiency.

          5                 I'm sure there's been plenty of

          6  rhetoric before I got here you know, everything

          7  around this world, everything around this City, from

          8  asthma to Iraq, tells us that this is a step we've

          9  got to take.

         10                 Mr. Chair, I really thank you for

         11  considering this bill.  Thank you.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         13  Council Member Yassky.  A couple last questions if I

         14  may.

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Sure.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm

         17  sorry.  Council Member Garodnick.  Questions?  Yes?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Yes.  Thank

         19  you very much Mr. Chair.

         20                 A quick comment.  I was sitting here

         21  listening, because I wanted to hear a little bit

         22  more about your response to some of the questions.

         23  And it seems to me that the occasions are few and

         24  far between, for us to take bold steps here.  And I

         25  was looking at the numbers.  First of all, in terms
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          2  of where we are today, with regard to the last law

          3  that was passed, and the nine percent requirements.

          4  Nine percent were required to be accessible, and

          5  nine percent were required to be fuel efficient,

          6  which would bring us to 81 each, by the end of this

          7  year.  Is that right?  Or by June of this year?

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: That's

         10  right.  But today, we're up to 27 accessible taxis,

         11  and 19 fuel efficient taxis.  Is that right?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Almost.  Actually

         13  19 alternative fuel medallions, but a total of 27

         14  hybrid- electrics.  Because there are some that have

         15  been voluntarily put on the road that are being

         16  operated with these special medallions.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  So

         18  we're still pretty  --  one month away, we're still

         19  pretty far from where we need to be  --

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well it's also

         21  very recent.  I mean, these are all very recent

         22  developments.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Right.

         24  Well I understand, and I heard in your testimony

         25  that you felt like a lot of these things were
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          2  happening fast, and that perhaps even too fast for

          3  you to handle.  Although, I'm not sure that we have

          4  the luxury of missing opportunities like the ones

          5  that we have now, with medallion sales.

          6                 But I really wanted to ask you

          7  specifically about the for- hire service.  Because

          8  it seems to me, from your description, and others,

          9  that the for- hire service is one which is a backup

         10  to the actual hailed taxis on the streets, and that

         11  they provide a service which mitigates, perhaps is

         12  the word, the problems that we have from the fact

         13  that it's like picking a needle out of a haystack to

         14  find a wheelchair accessible taxicab in New York

         15  City.

         16                 So I wanted to ask you, this is

         17  obviously within your jurisdiction.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And there

         20  apparently have been surveys which say that a third

         21  of the liveries refuse to pick up accessible taxis,

         22  and people need to make appointments a week in

         23  advance, to be able to be picked up by a for- hire

         24  cab.  Can you give me a sense of what the TLC is

         25  doing to monitor, to regulate, to ensure that this
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          2  system is working?  Because it seems to me, reading

          3  anecdotes, reading surveys, reading stories about

          4  that sort of responsiveness, it seems like the TLC

          5  may not be doing enough. Maybe you can answer that

          6  for me.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, I don't

          8  think it's a question of whether we've done enough

          9   --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Well do you

         11  do?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I think we've done

         13  a lot.  But the system, as it was designed, is not

         14  working I think, the way we all want it to work.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: How is the

         16  system  -- let's start from the basics.  Because how

         17  is the system designed? I really don't have a great

         18  sense of that.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Basically  --  and

         20  this is going back six year  --  in 2000, the

         21  Commission was looking for an answer to this

         22  problem.  And I agree, the answer, quite frankly,

         23  lies more in the for- hire side, where you can make

         24  telephone calls to go from point A to point B.  In

         25  some respects, all due respects to the yellow cab
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          2  industry, it is for people in boroughs that are less

          3  populated.  It's easier to call a car service and be

          4  picked up at your door.  You're not going to find

          5  the yellow cab, you know, hacking actively on a

          6  suburban side street, you know, in Hollis.

          7                 So with that in context, the

          8  Commission decided to put most of its resources into

          9  solving the problem of not having this service, by

         10  focusing on the for- hire industry.  Now that

         11  includes limousines, black cars, and car services,

         12  mostly.  The car services, we have close to 700 of

         13  them scattered throughout the City.  It just seems

         14  geographically, they're located in the right places.

         15     So what the Commission did in 2000 was to pass

         16  rules to say, we're going to let the market drive

         17  this process, and the demand, wherever it might be,

         18  drive the process.  And a free hand approach was

         19  taken, to a certain extent.  Basically, the laws,

         20  the way they were written, the rules the way they

         21  were written said, okay, you got three options

         22  basically on how to comply with the law.  Number

         23  one, if you're a car serviced based out on Coney

         24  Island, you know, you can buy your own accessible

         25  car, get it retrofitted, it operates as part of your

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  fleet.  Or, if that's too burdensome for you, or you

          3  don't think that that works for you because of your

          4  cash flow, you could partner with maybe two or three

          5  neighboring bases, and chip in and get a vehicle.

          6  And then you could develop a workshare agreement,

          7  via private contact, to make sure that when the call

          8  comes in to any of those bases that are sharing as

          9  part of that contract, that base A calls base B, and

         10  says, get that vehicle over here.

         11            The third option, which is something that

         12  we explored for a while, and we obtained a variety

         13  of interests from people, and worked actively with

         14  the community, to develop a specialty base. When I

         15  was reappointed by the Council, one of the things I

         16  remember in my testimony stands out vividly in my

         17  mind.  It was a few days before we approved a base

         18  called the Ride- for- All, which was a base that was

         19  going to be designed to be operated with several

         20  different --  several wheelchair accessible

         21  vehicles.  And they were going to enter into

         22  contracts with bases from around the City, in an

         23  effort to provide them with the service for their

         24  passengers, if they were to call in.

         25                 Long story short, the service was
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          2  working when it first started.  The disability

          3  community would disagree that it was what they

          4  wanted in the first place.  And it started to

          5  deteriorate as time went on.  So money was being

          6  paid by these car services to a Ride- for- All.

          7  Ride- for- All kept complaining that the business

          8  model that they set up wasn't working that well.

          9  They were loosing money.  And you know, another

         10  company, Symphony, before that, in the black car

         11  industry wanted to you know, had started the same

         12  concept, and got the black car bases.  You know, the

         13  luxury vehicles to pool their resources to pay for

         14  this company.  And they again, has severe financial

         15  problems.  They just weren't  --  as a business

         16  model, the amount of demand that they were getting

         17  and rides they were making was not supporting the

         18  expenses of the operation.  So they both had

         19  problems.

         20                 So you know, we put a lot of effort,

         21  number one, into devising a system.  And number two,

         22  over the last several years, into enforcing the law

         23  to make sure that all bases in the City either have

         24  a contract, a vehicle, or are signed up in one these

         25  specialty bases.  And it just is not working the way
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          2  it could be working.  It could be working better

          3  than not  --  like you said.  If you call around,

          4  and we do it as well, our undercover inspectors call

          5  these bases, they're not providing equivalent

          6  service.  It takes longer.  You have to schedule

          7  appointments.  And it costs more.  Of course, these

          8  companies can't charge the passenger more, but

          9  they're eating it.

         10                 I got a call the other day from

         11  someone who was complaining on Staten Island that a

         12  trip to the airport from Staten Island, which

         13  ordinarily would cost between 40 and 50 bucks, that

         14  they, you know, charged the passenger that.  They

         15  had to make reservations two days in advance with

         16  another company, that's similar to a Ride- for- All,

         17  and they charged that Staten Island base $250.  So

         18  they charged the passenger $50, they got charged

         19  $250.  You do the math.  It's a losing proposition

         20  We need to do something else, and something better

         21  than that.  And disabled New Yorkers deserve

         22  something better than that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Well I

         24  definitely agree, and I'm concerned as to what exact

         25  number of cars we're talking about here, in the City
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          2  of New York, which count as for- hire vehicles,

          3  which would be either a contracted entity or a Ride-

          4  for All, or whatever it is.  How many cars are we

          5  talking about here in the for- hire industry, which

          6  are available for disabled passengers?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I don't have the

          8  number with me right now, but we can get it for you.

          9    It changes every  --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I mean, you

         11  could see a situation where there's hundreds of base

         12  stations contracting with one provider, which may

         13  have only a couple of cars.  And you know, I don't

         14  know  --  I mean, I don't know the situations that

         15  exist out there, but I know anecdotally that there

         16  is a demand, and if these folks are not getting the

         17  calls, or if the cars are just simply not available,

         18  which is why people don't bother calling, then

         19  you're right, there is a problem, and the disabled

         20  community in New York City certainly does deserve

         21  better.  Which is one of the reasons why I think we

         22  need to take bolder steps here with our yellow cab

         23  industry today.

         24                 Well thank you very much for being

         25  here.  That was all I needed.  Thanks.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

          3  Council Member Garodnick.  Just to wrap up,

          4  Commissioner, a question.  What has TLC done in the

          5  past year, and what can we do in the future, to

          6  educate, promote the idea, you know, this sale, and

          7  maybe with future sales, regarding accessible taxis

          8  and you know, green taxis. I mean, what have you

          9  done, or what can you build upon and do for the

         10  future regarding that?

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well you know,

         12  certainly, as I mentioned in my testimony, we looked

         13  to develop a better overall plan for the City.  But

         14  in terms of selling these particular medallions,

         15  it's a process that we've done before, and it works

         16  very, very well.  We first start off with

         17  advertisements you know, in all of the papers where

         18  we believe you know, eligible people reside.  A lot

         19  of the ethnic communities  --

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm sorry

         21  to interrupt, but these advertisements again

         22  earmarked for, or highlight accessible taxis?

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: My understanding

         24  is that yes, there are  --  you know, we make  --

         25  well, some of the initial advertising that we're
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          2  doing right now is more focused and geared towards

          3  getting people to come to our seminars.  The

          4  advertising strategy is, let's get people moderately

          5  interested in this, get them into our seminars, and

          6  let's bring it on home.  And we had our first

          7  seminars yesterday.  We're having two more on

          8  Thursday.  And we've put advertisements out there.

          9  I've been on all sorts of radio shows, and so forth,

         10  trying to drum up interest.  Talking to drivers.

         11                 If we can get them in the door,   --

         12  when you come to the seminar, what you basically get

         13  from our staff is a very sophisticated run- through

         14  on the basics of the industry.  You know, what the

         15  operating costs are, what it means to own a

         16  medallion, and what you need to do to bid at the

         17  auction.  And at those seminars, our goal is to get

         18  people, when they leave the room, to have a better

         19  idea of whether they want to buy a medallion.  You

         20  know, we want them to come in with an open mind, sit

         21  there, listen to what we have to say, and then leave

         22  the room with the tools they need to make a decision

         23  as to yes or no.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again,

         25  Commissioner, I want to be very specific.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Okay.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That's to

          4  promote  --  to buy a medallion.  More specifically,

          5  the education and promotion of medallions for

          6  accessible taxis and green taxis.  Again  --

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I don't recall, to

          8  be honest with you, whether any or all of the ads

          9  that are out there are getting into that level of

         10  detail.  I can  --  I'm sorry  --  but really, the

         11  seminar is where we highlight that.  Our goal is to

         12  not take up valuable print and ad space with a lot

         13  of those details.  We want to just say, you want to

         14  buy a medallion, this is your last chance. Call 311

         15  and come to our seminar.  At the seminar, Council

         16  Member, I hope that answers your question, that's

         17  where we're spending a lot of the time on explaining

         18  the different types of medallions that are

         19  available.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Only

         21  because you had mentioned it being a success,

         22  although numbers may indicate differently, given the

         23  amount of medallions sold, and the low number that

         24  were sold for accessible taxis or green taxis.  So

         25  again, I guess we can agree to disagree about how
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          2  successful the numbers are, but we were hopeful that

          3  going forward, TLC can increase their efforts to

          4  promote the accessible taxis and the green taxis.

          5  So again, we look forward to hearing from you on

          6  that.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Thank you.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And

          9  lastly, you know, I appreciate your efforts

         10  regarding this issue, and like I mentioned earlier,

         11  it's probably the common ground  --  we both want to

         12  go forward and increase the number of accessible

         13  taxis and green taxis, but new medallions, you

         14  mentioned earlier, is an opportunity to have an

         15  opportunity here.  I don't want to pass it up.  I'm

         16  hopeful you don't either.  Seeing that even without

         17  Intro. 339, nine percent minimum for accessible and

         18  green taxis, is that correct?  On the current sale

         19   --

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes. That's the

         21  way it's been structured.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         23  Even without 339, would you be willing to increase

         24  that percentage?  Again, we have this opportunity.

         25  We have the sale coming up.  Don't know when the
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          2  next sale is.  Are you willing to at least consider

          3  increase that nine percent?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: At this point, for

          5  the reasons -  I have to respectfully disagree with

          6  you and the Council Members.  I mean, I feel very

          7  strongly that it's just not going to accomplish what

          8  our ultimate goal is.  I don't believe it's a wise

          9  policy, in my view.  I understand that you know  --

         10  and you very aptly stated you know, all the reasons

         11  for it.  I just have to respectfully disagree.  I

         12  think that we are almost done with this process.

         13  We're halfway through it.  My preference is that we

         14  go through the process and we have a discussion in

         15  the next month or two about how we can use those

         16  accessible cabs that we put on the street better.  I

         17  mean, that's my point of view.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well this

         19  can be a --

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: But the

         21  Administration, of course, is open to having a

         22  discussion with you, as with any legislation about

         23  you know, points that were made by your Members.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I am

         25  hopeful this Committee can continue the constructive
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          2  work that we do regarding seeing what's best for our

          3  ridership, and for increasing the number of

          4  accessible taxis, and again, green taxis.  But

          5  again, respectfully, I hopeful that some way,

          6  somehow, even before this current sale in June, we

          7  can look at increasing that, and the amount of

          8  percentage.  So thank you very much again for your

          9  time and testimony.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Thank you.  Good

         11  seeing you. Thanks everyone.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank

         13  you.

         14                 The next panel.  I'd like to call up

         15  Joseph Giannetto, from Metropolitan Taxicab Board of

         16  Trade.  Vincent Sapone, and David Pollack.  Please

         17  step forward.

         18                 I want to thank you all for being

         19  here today.  Could you just please state your name

         20  for the record.  And give your testimony please.

         21                 MR. GIANNETTO: Thank you.  And good

         22  afternoon Council Member Addabbo and Members of the

         23  Committee.  My name is Joseph Giannetto.  I am the

         24  Director of Business Development for the

         25  Metropolitan Taxicab Board of Trade, otherwise known
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          2  as MTBOT. Which is a 54- year old trade association

          3  comprised of 19 taxi fleet garages with more than

          4  2,500 yellow medallion taxicabs.

          5                 I'd just like to note right off the

          6  start, that MTBOT member fleets have long

          7  experimented with new vehicles. Tested them, and

          8  assessed their viability as New York City taxicabs.

          9  Now the only way to discover whether a vehicle will

         10  stand up to the rigors of New York City streets,

         11  particularly of the double- shifted yellow taxicab,

         12  is to test the vehicles.  MTBOT also strongly

         13  believes in the ability to choose which approved

         14  taxicab best suits each medallion owner, and not be

         15  forced to purchase any one particular vehicle or

         16  category of vehicle.

         17                 And we're therefore encouraged that

         18  the City Council has submitted legislation that aims

         19  to introduce a significant number of both wheelchair

         20  accessible and alternative fuel taxicabs in New York

         21  City, without imposing an industry mandate, or

         22  stripping owners of the powers to choose their

         23  vehicles.

         24                 Now two recent examples illustrate

         25  the importance of taking such an approach.  Just
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          2  this year, the Taxi and Limousine Commissioner ruled

          3  that it would no longer accept the wheelchair

          4  accessible Ford Freestar as a taxicab, citing poor

          5  durability, significant safety concerns, structural

          6  and mechanical problems. All 27 current wheelchair

          7  accessible taxis are the rear- entry Ford Freestars.

          8    They failed as taxis on the road.  Now imagine the

          9  repercussions to the riding public, the City of New

         10  York, and the industry, if all 13,000 taxicabs were

         11  mandated to be converted to Ford Freestars.

         12                 Now it was not too long ago when one

         13  of our fleets experimented with compressed natural

         14  gas vehicles.  With one of our fleets actually

         15  installing an extensive natural gas fueling station.

         16  Now the CNG program soon failed, and the approved

         17  CNG vehicle was discontinued by the automaker.

         18  Today, hybrid vehicles have replaced CNGs as the

         19  alternative choice, or vehicle of choice. Tomorrow,

         20  maybe ethanol fueled vehicles may prove better.  And

         21  down the road, hydrogen may be the fuel of choice.

         22  Again, imagine if the City mandated CNG.  It would

         23  have been disastrous.

         24                 Now if we have learned anything from

         25  our experiences with different vehicles, we've
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          2  learned that it takes a lot to be a New York City

          3  taxicab, and very few vehicles are up to the

          4  challenge.  The City has a responsibility to develop

          5  policies that are in the best interest of the

          6  millions of New Yorkers and tourists who ride in

          7  taxis every year.  As well as ensure that the taxi

          8  industry is not unfairly burdened.  Now that end, we

          9  think that Intro. 339 is on the right track.

         10                 Now while MTBOT firmly believes that

         11  people who use wheelchairs are best served through

         12  prearrangement, we support any program that enables

         13  the industry and the City to test the viability of

         14  vehicles, by offering incentives, discounts, and

         15  choice.

         16                 And I'd like to make a closing

         17  comment on the issue of partitions, if I may.  As it

         18  relates to the hybrid vehicles. MTBOT also firmly

         19  believes that we cannot sacrifice safety in the name

         20  of the environment or anything else for that matter.

         21  Hybrids offer great promise.  However, their current

         22  limitations in rear seat leg room make the

         23  installation of partitions difficult in order to

         24  maintain comfort standards.  Safety partitions were

         25  mandated following a dark time in the City's history
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          2  when taxi drivers were being regularly assaulted and

          3  even killed.  Now since partitions were mandated

          4  over 20 years ago, violent crimes against taxi

          5  drivers have plummeted.  We must not tempt fate by

          6  advocating policy that undermines the importance of

          7  the partition.  The safety of our drives and the

          8  riding public is our greatest concern, and fleets

          9  cannot be asked to sacrifice the safety of the

         10  drivers who lease from them.  Thank you for your

         11  time.

         12                 MR. POLLACK: Good afternoon Chairman

         13  Addabbo, and Council Members.  My name is David

         14  Pollack, Executive Director of the Committee for

         15  Taxi Safety, an association representing licensed

         16  leasing agents, fleets, the owners of approximately

         17  2,300 medallions, and the men and women that drive

         18  these taxis.  We appreciate the Transportation

         19  Committee allowing us to testify regarding Intro.

         20  339.

         21                 The Committee for Taxi Safety wants

         22  to commend the Council for its piece of legislation

         23  that would provide the taxi industry an opportunity

         24  to experiment with alternative fuel and wheelchair

         25  accessible vehicles.  This effort will help to
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          2  determine what really works in the New York City

          3  taxi industry, where taxis are double- shifted,

          4  driven over 100,000 miles in a year, and have a

          5  street hailed system.

          6                 This is an advantageous maneuver that

          7  will give the taxi industry full access to

          8  ascertaining the maintenance costs and vehicle

          9  durabilities.  Any issues regarding a lack of a

         10  partition, insurance, as well as other issues the

         11  Council feels it necessary to explore, can be better

         12  addressed in the future with the addition of the

         13  vehicles provided in Intro. 339.

         14                 Thank you again for allowing time for

         15  the Committee for Taxi Safety to speak in support of

         16  the general ideas of Intro. 339.

         17                 MR. SAPONE: Good afternoon Mr.

         18  Chairman and City Council Members.  My name is

         19  Vincent Sapone.  I'm the Executive Director for the

         20  League of Mutual Taxi Owners, known as LOMTO.  I

         21  represent the small businessman that buys his

         22  medallion and drives it himself.  I do have a sum of

         23  leased drivers, but not enough.  We have

         24  approximately 3,200, 3,300 members.

         25                 Now, you know what?  I think Mr. Daus
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          2  gave an excellent statement.  Really.  I think it

          3  was right on the money. But, but, you know, if they

          4  would allow  --  I don't know about the car, but if

          5  someone wants to buy a hybrid, or a handicapped  --

          6  and you know, you make them all handicapped and

          7  hybrids, I got no problem with that.  If someone

          8  wants  --  that's optional.  I just don't  --  you

          9  know, I don't like anything forced down my throat. I

         10  don't think anyone here likes that.  But if someone

         11  wants to volunteer and buy something, be my guest.

         12  Go right ahead.

         13                 But I have to tell you something.

         14  Nor the City Council, if you forgive me, or the TLC,

         15  has the cab driver in his mind.  Now why, I don't

         16  know.  The cab driver  --  I would say, they're all

         17  minorities.  The cab driver works 12 hours a day.

         18  He works six days a week.  After expenses, the

         19  owner/driver, plus the lease guys maybe he brings

         20  home $500, $600 it's a heyday.  Mazel Tov.  You

         21  know.

         22                 I'm in favor of helping the

         23  handicapped people.  I have a severe back problem.

         24  But nowhere like these people. Nowhere.  Okay,

         25  nowhere.  But you know what?  If you go to   -- you
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          2  got to find the right vehicle.  Number one.  Okay?

          3  This new Chevy Highlander will probably get about

          4  eight miles to a gallon. Okay?  And I don't know how

          5  long that's going to last out there. All right?

          6  There must be incentatives (sic) for cab owners to

          7  buy handicapped accessible and hybrids.  Got to be

          8  incentives.  You can't tell a guy to go out there an

          9  buy a $15,000 car, it costs more, $15,000 more,

         10  okay?  Than your Crown Vic.

         11                 And also, are you guys working on

         12  where we're going to get insured?  Do I got to blame

         13  you too?  Plus the TLC.  You know?  I hear there's

         14  no insurance.  I hear it takes $8,000 a year,

         15  against $4,500 a year.  Now we pay for our own

         16  insurance, we pay for our own repairs, and we buy a

         17  new car.  Okay?  Would I love to help these people,

         18  handicapped people?  Absolutely.

         19                 In other cities, they probably, from

         20  what I know, they use two- way radios, they have a

         21  certain amount of cars that are handicap accessible,

         22  plus, plus, they get subsidized from the city.  It

         23  seems like, if you'll forgive me, this City wants to

         24  do everything on the working man's back.  I mean,

         25  let's get together and let's have more meetings,
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          2  let's help the handicapped, and let's make it work.

          3  You've got to give  --  you've got to put the carrot

          4  out there, okay?  To the drivers.  You got to be

          5  thinking about that carrot.

          6                 You know what?  You're getting five

          7  years now, how about seven and a half years?  And

          8  then you got to find out about the insurance.  Okay?

          9                 Listen, I don't mean to be bold, but

         10  no one's here is discussing the livelihood of 40,000

         11  drivers.  And they're all minorities.  They're not

         12  wealthy.  Because they own a cab, sure, it went up

         13  in value.  A lot of these guys got $3,000 a month,

         14  close to $4,000 a month payments.  Plus getting a

         15  car every five years. It's not easy to stay in

         16  business.  You know, it really isn't.

         17                 Anyway, you know what?  I think

         18  everybody is looking to push something, and no one

         19  knows where we're going.  You know? If you want to

         20  make everything handicapped on the next sale,

         21  accessible and hybrid?  You know what?  You know

         22  Chairman Daus, I hate to go against him, because

         23  he's bright and I think he's right about the car.

         24  But if that's what you want, go right ahead.  And if

         25  there's someone out there that's  --  I shouldn't
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          2  say it, because they're naughty, but that's not nice

          3    --  but if there is someone out there that wants

          4  to buy it, go right ahead.  Just don't tell me I

          5  can't live in this neighborhood, or I can't buy

          6  that, or I have to buy that.  That's no good.  You

          7  know, there's a way of getting it done, that's by

          8  working together.  Taking it from all different

          9  sides, the handicapped people, your side, my side,

         10  the TLC.  That's the way to do it, okay?  Not just

         11  say let's do it.

         12                 But again, if you want to do this,

         13  that's fine with me.  And thank you for my yelling.

         14  I apologize.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It's all

         16  right, Mr. Sapone. Thank you very much for your

         17  time.  Thank all three of you for your time and

         18  testimony.

         19                 Just a quick question, before I get

         20  to questions from Council Member Lappin.  How

         21  concerned are you  --  you know, should we not go

         22  forward with Intro. 339, and rely upon the TLC sale

         23  to go forward in June.  How concerned are you with

         24  regards to the possibility of again, a slightly

         25  higher, but not nearly to the extent that maybe it
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          2  should be, the accessible taxis and the green taxis.

          3    How concerned are you, as an industry?

          4                 MR. GIANNETTO: Well MTBOT has stated

          5  this in the past, that we are concerned and

          6  sensitive to this issue.  Our main concern is that

          7  we have a vehicle that withstands the rigors of New

          8  York City.  And if that's the case  --  and made

          9  economic sense as well.

         10                 Now we understand  --  we did a lot

         11  of research last year into the costs, not only of a

         12  vehicle, but also of the lifespan of the vehicle,

         13  and we submitted to Council Member Liu's office the

         14  research that we've done.  There's a significant

         15  cost difference between a Ford Crown Victoria and a

         16  wheelchair accessible van.  And even the cheapest

         17  van at that point, was a rear- entry Ford Freestar.

         18  The side entries that the TLC is now specifying is

         19  much more expensive.

         20                 Recognizing that there is that cost

         21  differential, we are seeking ways to bridge that gap

         22  by working with the TLC to try to tap into some

         23  federal funds that are available through recently

         24  passed legislation.  But if this doesn't to through

         25   --  you know, I'm confident, and somewhat
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          2  optimistic that the TLC's efforts will bear fruit.

          3  That they will actually increase the fleet size over

          4  the next several years, and actually have a vehicle

          5  that works. Not only the taxi industry, but also in

          6  the for- hire vehicle industry.

          7                 MR. POLLACK: The Uplander, which was

          8  just approved by the Taxi and Limousine Commission

          9  last week, is not a proven vehicle.  It retails for

         10  around $38,000, while a Crown Victoria retails for

         11  approximately $25,000.  My colleagues Vinnie Sapone

         12  and Joe Giannetto are correct in everything they are

         13  saying.  The Ford Freestar, I had the opportunity of

         14  being at an inspection site, where three of the cars

         15  were there.  One had a cracked chassis, one had a

         16  cracked axle, one had a cracked ramp that was never

         17  used. Certainly not the vehicle, but  --  and it

         18  wasn't backed by the manufacturer either.  So you

         19  need a vehicle that not only works, but that's

         20  affordable for the industry

         21                 And let's not forget, in all

         22  districts in New York City, buses that are

         23  wheelchair accessible are subsidized.  Not only by

         24  the City, by the State.  The MTA, you refinance your

         25  mortgage.  I have to pay the MTA a fee.  So they get
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          2  money in a lot of different ways.

          3                 We're independent business people in

          4  the yellow taxi industry, so when someone says,  --

          5  you know, and we appreciate the fact that there is

          6  no mandate at a time when there really is no

          7  vehicle.  But when someone says, you know, we should

          8  and we could do this, Vinnie is right also.  Think

          9  about the driver.  Think about the owner.  You know,

         10  and you know, the old saying is put money where your

         11  mouth is.  Somebody is willing to put money up for

         12  these vehicles, we're willing to test them tomorrow.

         13

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You can,

         15  if you speak into the mike.

         16                 MR. SAPONE: I thought I was loud

         17  enough.  All right, listen.  I apologize for yelling

         18  by I get carried away here.

         19                 Let me tell you something.  These

         20  hybrid cars okay? You know, you save on money, the

         21  gas, it costs a little more, a little less, it's

         22  great.  But you know, I'm very nervous in the small

         23  ones, driving them.  If there's an accident, you

         24  could be done, over with.  And number two.  I

         25  guarantee you, anyone of you people up there, got in
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          2  one of these hybrids, you will put your legs up on

          3  the seat.  It's very tight.  Okay?  You know, we

          4  rush these hybrids  --  you know, again, we rush

          5  these hybrids.  We do without petitions.  One of my

          6  board members, years ago, got shot in the head on

          7  the Westside Highway.  I went to his funeral.  He

          8  had three daughters, a wife, mother, crying like

          9  crazy, okay?   At that time, there was no

         10  partitions.  Okay?  Mr. Daus says we haven't had

         11  anything.  He's right.  And he also claims a lot of

         12  the guys drive around with the petition half open.

         13  Which he's right.  But to have --  even if he's

         14  riding around with it open, I don't think night time

         15  guys do that.  Maybe day time.  You always got

         16  something behind your neck.  You know.  Maybe I

         17  shouldn't say this, but I want to know if there's

         18  one killing, one murder, without a partition, who is

         19  going to stand up and accept the fact that they

         20  okay'd that deal, you know?  We need partitions.  We

         21  need longer cars, or bigger cars.  We can't use

         22  these Mickey Mouse cars for cabs.  Because they just

         23  don't work in the best City in the world, in New

         24  York City.  They don't work.  Maybe one day, Ford

         25  will come out with a Crown Vic that's a hybrid,
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          2  where we can put a petition in it.

          3                 Now someone might tell me, well you

          4  can buy this car or that car.  That's $55,000 that I

          5  have to dump every five years. That's not good.  You

          6  know, no one at the TLC or, I'm sorry to say here,

          7  we waited nine years for a raise, and no one here

          8  helped us for it, okay?  No one there helped us for

          9  it.  I mean, we had cab drivers living with three

         10  families, eating rice all day, to make ends meet.

         11  When are we going to start thinking about the

         12  handicapped people and the working man together?

         13  When are we going to do that?  I said enough.

         14  Sorry.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank

         16  you.  Council Member Lappin.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you Mr.

         18  Chairman.

         19                 Let's talk about economics for a

         20  minute.  First of all, it's my understanding that

         21  the medallions for the regular taxis are

         22  considerably more expensive than the medallions for

         23  the alternative fuel vehicles.  I mean, I think

         24  about $330,000 is what the medallions cost at the

         25  last auction, for a regular taxi.  And about
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          2  $222,000 for an alternative fuel vehicle.  Is that

          3  correct?

          4                 MR. GIANNETTO: That sounds correct.

          5  There was no approved vehicle that the Taxi

          6  Commission had at that time.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: But that's

          8  about a  --  you know, my math isn't great.  But I'm

          9  going to say 30 percent value, or 30 percent less

         10  cost to the person who purchased the medallion. So

         11  there was an economic incentive brought to bear

         12  partly by the market in terms of the purchase price

         13  of the vehicle.  And then, I mean, the TLC has done

         14  a study, their preliminary analysis says that the

         15  potential fuel savings and efficiency from using

         16  hybrids. Compared to the standard Ford Crown Vic

         17  would be approximately $5,000  a year.  And that

         18  estimated annual expenses for a Crown Vic, including

         19  maintenance, insurance, loans, fuel, and model

         20  suggested retail price are about $25,296, versus,

         21  for the Toyota or Honda, $18,000 to $19,000.

         22                 MR. SAPONE: Yes, it's a match box.

         23  You're right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Well, we're

         25  talking economics, so I'm asking questions.
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          2                 MR. GIANNETTO: But what's the point

          3  of citing the statistics?  Economics as it relates

          4  to the medallion sale?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Well one, the

          6  medallions are cheaper.  So you're saving money when

          7  you purchase the medallion. A considerable amount of

          8  money.  And two, it costs less to run it and to

          9  purchase it.  So I guess I'm not understanding why

         10  it's so much more expensive.

         11                 MR. SAPONE: I'm sorry guys.  I have

         12  to say this. Number one, the battery, we've been

         13  told the battery lasts about 100,000 miles, and the

         14  average cab does about 300,000, okay?  Who knows,

         15  maybe more.  And it costs anywhere between $2.000

         16  and $4,000, or is it $5,000 David, to replace that

         17  battery.  That's number one.  Number two.  I'm

         18  talking on behalf of all the drivers. We are not

         19  self insured, like probably the person that bought

         20  all those Toyotas or whatever.  We have to go out

         21  there and get insurance.  Okay?  We are not self

         22  insured.  And there is no insurance.  So any

         23  medallion for sale for handicapped vehicles  -- I

         24  can't figure out if any individual would say what

         25  you just said. After five years, it's eaten up.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Except 27 did

          3  buy them last time.

          4                 MR. GIANNETTO: I mean, an individual

          5  who is considering to purchase one of these

          6  restricting medallions would take the value of the

          7  medallion, the discount if you will, into

          8  consideration.  And then apply all of the other

          9  factors that you mentioned.  It costs more to buy a

         10  hybrid than a Ford Crown Victoria.  It's

         11  questionable whether or not  --  and we're talking

         12  about hybrids, I think you're mentioning, because

         13  you talk about fuel savings.  It's questionable

         14  whether or not you would actually bet a return on

         15  your investment over the lifespan of the vehicle

         16  when you factor in  --  it's speculated at this

         17  point, that hybrids would probably result in higher

         18  maintenance costs than a standard Crown Victoria.

         19                 But again,  --  so you have a

         20  durability issue as well, whether or not they are

         21  manufactured, I think as Commissioner Daus said, as

         22  fleet vehicles, as opposed to just private vehicles

         23  that happened to be used as a taxi.  So you might

         24  have a shorter lifespan, you might have increased

         25  maintenance costs, that might just kind of offset
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          2  the discount on the medallion price.

          3                 But again, an individual who might

          4  consider buying one of these restricted medallions

          5  might find the discount to the medallion an

          6  overwhelming factor in making that choice.

          7                 But from a fleet perspective, it's

          8  different.

          9                 MR. POLLACK: No, maintenance expenses

         10  are something that has to be looked into.  Also, we

         11  get back to the partition issue.  The Ford Escapes

         12  don't have a partition.  They have the cameras.

         13  There's a Prius on the road.  Imagine a Prius with a

         14  partition?  You'd have to sit on the seats with your

         15  knees.

         16                 Somebody I know just bought a new

         17  Lexus.  I got in the back seat, there's no

         18  partition.  There's less room in that Lexus than in

         19  other vehicles.  So availability is a problem.  When

         20  it comes to hybrids.  How fast can the manufacturers

         21  develop them? Will they be ready?  Will you be able

         22  to purchase it in time to close without forfeiting

         23  your deposit at the Taxi and Limousine Commission?

         24  There are just a number of issues and  --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I mean, the
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          2  insurance is a valid issue, but  --  and the

          3  partitions are a valid issue.  But I would say, with

          4  gas prices the way they are, you're going to see

          5  more and more hybrids developing at a rapid rate.

          6                 But what  --  and I want to go back

          7  to   --  and either one of you can answer this  --

          8  what is the average lifespan of a regular taxi?

          9                 MR. GIANNETTO: It's not an average

         10  lifespan.  We're mandated to replace individual

         11  vehicles every five years, if they're double

         12  shifted.  Or driven by the same owner/driver.  And

         13  fleets are mandated to be replaced every three

         14  years, if they're double shifted.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So it's every

         16  five years if it's owner operated?  And every three

         17  years if it's fleet.

         18                 Who pays the cost of the gas?  The

         19  actual driver?

         20                 MR. GIANNETTO: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So a hybrid

         22  would help the average working man who is driving a

         23  taxi.  Okay.  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         25  Council Member Lappin.  Council Member Garodnick.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 From what I'm hearing from this

          5  panel, it sounds like you're primary concerns are

          6  about having something forced down your throat, as

          7  opposed to letting the market decide.  But I did

          8  want to take issue with something that Mr. Giannetto

          9  said, and specifically, that people who use

         10  wheelchairs are best served through prearrangement.

         11  Because if I understand that correctly, you're

         12  saying that you think that people in wheelchairs are

         13  or should be calling for taxis, primarily that is

         14  the best service that they should expect.  And if

         15  I'm not understanding that correctly, I'd like to

         16  give you the opportunity to explain.

         17                 MR. GIANNETTO: Let me clarify.  Those

         18  statements were made in the context of mandating a

         19  vehicle on the taxi industry that won't work as a

         20  taxi.  In the current environment today, if it's

         21  faced with a choice of mandated Ford Freestars that

         22  have failed, and will fail again, if mandated, for

         23  example, or having that same vehicle under less

         24  stress, in an operating environment such as the for-

         25  hire vehicle industry servicing all five boroughs, I
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          2  just want to make it clear that given the current

          3  environment, and the availability of vehicles as

          4  taxis, the needs of people with disabilities across

          5  the City, as the Chairman said, is best served in

          6  the prearrangement area.

          7                 And you made a comment, by the way,

          8  that you said that  --  I think you made a comment

          9  that said something to the effect that FHVs are

         10  viewed as a backup to the taxi industry.  And that's

         11  not the case.  For- hire vehicles in New York City

         12  has been designed as taxis to pick up street hails,

         13  and the for- hire vehicles to be restricted to

         14  prearrangement.  Economics have you know, I guess,

         15  attracted taxis to the Central Business District,

         16  not into the outer boroughs.  But again, I hope I

         17  made myself clear.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Oh no.  I

         19  think you did. But let me make myself clear though.

         20  When I said "backup" if you are somebody who is in a

         21  wheelchair, rather than take your chances and

         22  hailing one of the 27 taxis out of the fleet of

         23  12,000 on the street, your next best opportunity is

         24  to make a prearrangement. But it seemed very clear

         25  to me that the prearrangement system does not work
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          2  very well for disabled people in New York City.  And

          3  so, --  in fact, I'm actually curious to know, does

          4  the Metropolitan Taxicab Board of Trade represent

          5  any of the for- hire vehicles?  Or are you only the

          6  yellow medallions?

          7                 MR. GIANNETTO: We just represent

          8  yellow medallion taxi fleet owners.  But I want to

          9  make it clear.  We share the over- arching goal that

         10  every taxi in New York City should be wheelchair

         11  accessible.  But it has to meet all of the concerns.

         12  As Vinnie brought out, the owners and the drivers,

         13  as well as the people with disabilities, too.  The

         14  last thing you want is to put a vehicle on the road

         15  that's not going to meet the rigors of New York

         16  City, and then you have to scrap it and just have a

         17  setback to the program.  So we support that goal.

         18                 And we have worked with Council

         19  Member Liu's office to advance that goal.  And to

         20  advance those efforts.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.

         22  Thank you.  It sounds to me that we do share the

         23  goal that all disabled New Yorkers should be able to

         24  hail a taxi in New York City and not have to resort

         25  to what I called the backup.  But call it whatever
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          2  you want to call it.  Prearrangement, a for- hire

          3  telephone call to the be made a week in advance,

          4  anything like that.  We need to make sure that all

          5  these taxis are wheelchair accessible.  And thank

          6  you for clarifying that.  Thank you.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

          8  Council Member Garodnick.  And I really want to

          9  thank this panel.  And one important issue to be

         10  made here is the fact that these hearings obviously

         11  offer input.  And we do appreciate your time and

         12  your input, especially with this Intro., Intro 339.

         13  Again, taking into consideration your testimony with

         14  Intro. 339, I think is most helpful.  The City

         15  Council does not, and should not operate in a

         16  vacuum.  Obviously, the issues we speak about today

         17  affect millions of people throughout the City.  So

         18  we do appreciate your input today.  Thank you.

         19                 MR. GIANNETTO: Thank you Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Our next

         22  panel is a panel of four.  Please come up.  Terence

         23  Moakley.  Jean Ryan.  Marvin Wasserman.  And

         24  Alexander Wood.  Please come forward please.

         25                 I want to thank you all for being
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          2  here today.  And for your testimony.  When you're

          3  ready, just please state your name.  Give your

          4  affiliation if you have any.  And give your

          5  testimony, please.

          6                 MS. RYAN: Hi.  My name is Jean Ryan.

          7  And I'm from Disabled in Action.  And I'm here to

          8  put our support behind Intro. 339, to use 54 of the

          9  new taxi medallions for accessible taxis.  If an

         10  accessible and hybrid taxi existed now, we would

         11  recommend that all 108 taxis be both.  That day will

         12  come soon, when we have an environmentally friendly,

         13  accessible car, and then we would want all yellow

         14  taxis to be accessible and hybrid.

         15                 In the past, I have likened finding

         16  an accessible cab to an Elvis sighting, but after a

         17  year of looking, I recently saw my first accessible

         18  cab, so I want to change the analogy, and say that

         19  if you left this building today, and only had 27 or

         20  even 81 cabs in the whole City that you, and

         21  everyone else could use, you'd be right up here with

         22  me too.

         23                 While it is great that we are getting

         24  more accessible taxis, we need them all to be

         25  accessible before we will have a good chance of
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          2  getting one, like everybody else.  To reach that

          3  goal, we need the Council's help, and we urge the

          4  Council to move forward this year with our proposed

          5  taxi bill that will combine the two goals of

          6  gradually reaching 100 percent accessibility, and

          7  clean air taxis.  We appreciate the commitment that

          8  Council Member Koppell has made to introduce our

          9  bill.

         10                 Access is good for business.  It

         11  brings more customers.  Not only is access good for

         12  business, it's good for tourism too.  It's

         13  embarrassing to show our City in this poor light,

         14  with lack of accessibility.  Travel agents steer

         15  disabled tourists to other cities, not ours.

         16                 We are looking to you to show your

         17  commitment to civil rights, and put way more

         18  accessible taxis on the road. People with

         19  disabilities cannot continue to be left out of an

         20  important transportation option for people in our

         21  City.

         22                 I would like to add that when the TLC

         23  passed the regulation for for- hire vehicles, that

         24  they could contract out, or have their own vehicle,

         25  already, Ride- for- All only has three cars and
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          2  could not meet the demands when people called Ride-

          3  for- All directly.  We would have to wait two weeks

          4  to get a ride.  We would have to book a ride two

          5  weeks in advance.  And this is prior to the TLC

          6  enacting that regulation.  So this was not something

          7  that just didn't prove to work well, it already

          8  didn't work well at the beginning of the regulation.

          9

         10                 And the reason, probably, is that

         11  that person from Staten Island got charged  --  well

         12  the base got charged an exorbitant amount, was

         13  probably because the car, the accessible car was

         14  really an ambulet, for taking sick people to the

         15  hospital.  And we don't want to ride in ambulets.

         16  We want to ride in accessible taxis like everybody

         17  else does.  We don't want anything special. We want

         18  a universal car that will work for everyone.  Thank

         19  you.

         20                 MR. WOOD: Good afternoon.  I'm

         21  Alexander Wood.  I'm the Director of the

         22  Disabilities Network of New York City.  It's good to

         23  be here today speaking before the City Council

         24  Committee on Transportation, Chaired today by Joe

         25  Addabbo.  And speaking to him, his colleagues on the
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          2  Council, who have been asking such pointed

          3  questions, and it's dedicated staff.

          4                 This testimony is delivered on behalf

          5  of the Taxis for All Campaign, which is a

          6  partnership of the Disabilities Network of New York

          7  City, New York Lawyers for the Public Interest,

          8  United Spinal Association, Disabled in Action, 504

          9  Democratic Club, the Antidiscrimination Center of

         10  Metropolitan New York, and other organizations and

         11  members of the network.

         12                 We're a  --  Disabilities Network is

         13  a Citywide coalition of consumers, advocates, and

         14  professional organizations representing and working

         15  on behalf of people with motor and sensory

         16  disabilities, seeking to promote full participation

         17  of people with physical disabilities in the life of

         18  the City, by strengthening appropriate Citywide

         19  policies.  So what better way to work towards full

         20  participation of people with disabilities in the

         21  life of the City, than to ensure that access to this

         22  vital mode of transportation that's so integral a

         23  part of New York experience is accessible to

         24  wheelchair users.  And because I represent a cross

         25  disability coalition, I want to emphasize that true
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          2  access means that we also consider people with

          3  hearing loss and vision loss. Accessible taxis

          4  should be looped so that people who use hearing aids

          5  can function in the mainstream.  This is a low- cost

          6  wire installed in the cab.  It's an induction loop

          7  system by which a microphone transmits to the T-

          8  coil in the hearing aid.  And drivers must be

          9  trained to pick up blind passengers with guide dogs.

         10                 Basically, I have a couple of

         11  additional points.

         12                 We support the proposal in Intro. 339

         13  that in this next auction of 300 new medallions,

         14  there be a 50- 50 split between accessible vehicles

         15  and hybrids.  While our goal is still 100 accessible

         16  taxi fleet, this is a significant step forward.

         17  We'll have 177 to 180 accessible taxis on the New

         18  York City streets at that point, and that's more

         19  than the 81 we expected three years ago, when the

         20  Mayor authorized the sale of 900 new medallions,

         21  nine percent of which were to be accessible.

         22                 I think it was great that Dan

         23  Garodnick brought out the actual state of affairs,

         24  you know, that we have 27 accessible taxis today,

         25  and 19 fuel efficient taxis, when we really ought to
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          2  have 81.  And 81 in a months time.

          3                 This bill can't serve as a test.  We

          4  hear continually from the Taxi and Limousine

          5  Commission and taxi representatives that there are

          6  issues with how vehicles run on New York City

          7  streets.  The fact is, whatever minor adjustments

          8  need to be made in outfitting these vehicles to make

          9  them work, where there's a will, there's a way.

         10                 We need the Council's leadership to

         11  move towards developing a bill this year that will

         12  mandate over time, the widespread availability of

         13  accessible taxis.  You know, I also recognize how

         14  well Council Members brought out you know, the

         15  ridicules prospect of trying to operate in a street

         16  hailed system, to hail an accessible taxi if only

         17  180 out of 13,087 are accessible.

         18                 The Taxis for All Campaign has

         19  submitted a bill that would combine the two goals.

         20  Accessibility and clean air.  And we appreciate the

         21  commitment that Council Member Koppell made to us in

         22  a meeting a couple of weeks ago, to introduce the

         23  bill.  We urge the Council to support the bill when

         24  it's introduced.  And we urge the Speaker to

         25  schedule a hearing as soon as possible, in June, so
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          2  progress can be made on ironing out the details of

          3  how to move ahead towards adding accessible and

          4  clean air vehicles to the taxi fleets operating on

          5  the streets of New York City.

          6            A couple more points.  Mandating that

          7  yellow cabs be accessible makes sense, because New

          8  York City is a leader in so many areas, it's a pity

          9  we lag so far behind Boston, Chicago, Washington,

         10  San Francisco, Las Vegas, London, and so many other

         11  cities.  Travelers with disabilities continually

         12  struggle with how to get into and around New York

         13  City.  Tourism is one of the top revenue generators

         14  in the City, with 30 million visitors a year, and

         15  some portion of that number being people with

         16  disabilities. It's you know, a big economic factor.

         17  It's also a human rights issue.  Access to

         18  transportation is a basic human right.  How else can

         19  we compete in the marketplace if we cannot move

         20  physically around the City?

         21                 Thank you once more for this

         22  opportunity to speak. And please, let's work

         23  together towards realizing the possibility this

         24  opportunity represents to gain wheelchair accessible

         25  taxis in New York.  When programs and services are
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          2  added to the transportation infrastructure, it's

          3  important that universal design is a basic premise

          4  from the beginning.  New York City is one of the

          5  most widely visited travel destinations in the

          6  world.  For personal and business travelers.  For

          7  the sake of future generations, and for the many

          8  people with disabilities now, and in times to come,

          9  let's make decisions that lead towards inclusion for

         10  all.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         12  Mr. Wood.  And before we just go forward, I just

         13  want to take this moment to welcome a member of the

         14  Committee, Council Member Diana Reyna.  Thank you.

         15                 MR. WASSERMAN: Good afternoon.  I'm

         16  Marvin Wasserman.  I'm President of the 540

         17  Democratic Club, which is a Citywide coalition of

         18  people with disabilities, their friends, and

         19  families.  And also a part of Taxis for All

         20  Campaign.

         21                 We've been working on this issue for

         22  more than ten years.  It's been a dream for people

         23  with disabilities to be able to go anywhere in this

         24  City by taxi for a lot longer than that. And we

         25  watched as we've fallen behind many other cities
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          2  around the country in the introduction of accessible

          3  taxis including cities like Boston and Chicago,

          4  which have some of the same road conditions as in

          5  New York City.

          6                 Many tourists who visit us from

          7  around the country say that of the major cities in

          8  the United States, we have the worst transportation

          9  for people with disabilities.  And most recently,

         10  the Mayor of Vancouver visited New York, back in

         11  February.  He is a quadriplegic who uses a motorized

         12  wheelchair. And he left a  --  he has an audiotape

         13  of his visit to New York on the City of Vancouver

         14  website.  And I'd like to quote from it verbatim.

         15                 He said, "Hello.  This is Mayor Sam

         16  Sullivan.  I am in New York right now.  It was very

         17  difficult to arriving.  There was no wheelchair

         18  accessible taxi available at the time I got in.

         19  Therefore, I had to be carried into a van by four

         20  people, and my wheelchair had to be man- handled as

         21  well, for me to get into New York to my hotel.  I

         22  sure appreciate the wheelchair accessible taxis and

         23  the general accessibility of Vancouver."

         24                 Now when other cities have achieved

         25  this through the leadership of their mayors, and

                                                            109

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  this is where New York is falling behind, and if you

          3  listen to the testimony of Chairman Daus before, you

          4  will understand.  Yes, there is a problem, and yes,

          5  we need to come up with solutions for it.  But he

          6  hasn't come with any, and he even mis- stated the

          7  fact that the current taxi  --  the current livery

          8  regulation requiring accessible cab services is not

          9  working, because virtually everybody is not getting

         10  rides.  Or if they are getting rides, they're not

         11  getting equivalent service, because they're being

         12  charged double or more of the same ride that a local

         13  service would provide.  And they shut down at 10

         14  o'clock, when their local service is open 24 hours a

         15  day.

         16                 Which is why we've looked to the

         17  Council for remediation.  And we applaud you for

         18  introducing this bill as a necessary first step.  We

         19  believe that both sides of the industry, both the

         20  livery and the medallions have a responsibility to

         21  provide service to all New Yorkers, especially New

         22  Yorkers with disabilities.

         23                 And we look forward to a day when all

         24  taxis in New York reflect both the greening and the

         25  greying of America.  And we urge you to support this
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          2  bill, and we also commend to you our bill, providing

          3  steps to making all taxis in New York both

          4  wheelchair accessible and hybrid.  Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

          7  Mr. Wasserman.

          8                 MR. MOAKLEY: Good afternoon Council

          9  Members.  I'm Terence Moakley.  I work for United

         10  Spinal Association, formerly Eastern Paralyzed

         11  Veterans Association.  And I'm the Chair of the

         12  Taxis for All Campaign.

         13                 I did submit written testimony.  But

         14  I'd just like to mention a few things to highlight

         15  from that, and in response to a few things that were

         16  said earlier.

         17                 I want to emphasize that Taxis for

         18  All Campaign supports not only 154 wheelchair

         19  accessible yellow taxis, but also 154 clean air

         20  taxis.  Clean air yellow taxis.

         21                 There's been a lot of talk today

         22  about a test.  And we think that the issue of

         23  accessible taxis and for- hire vehicles is a

         24  question of fairness and human rights.  And should

         25  not be subjugated to a test.  I think certainly,
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          2  experimentation in the hearings last week,

          3  concerning the new Taxi and Limousine regulations,

          4  we opposed those regulations, because we believe

          5  that competition is what spurs and evasion.  And to

          6  limit their requirement to just one company, and one

          7  company's  --  or possibly a second company's

          8  conversion is limiting competition.  It's not the

          9  way we're going to end up with the best vehicle in

         10  this City. The cream always rises to the top when

         11  you have competition, and that's something that we

         12  want to mention as well.

         13                 So we hope you will recognize, as we

         14  do, that making taxis and livery vehicles accessible

         15  gradually and over time, is simply the right thing

         16  to do.

         17                 Commissioner Daus made a point of

         18  saying that making yellow taxis acceptable, it's not

         19  a panacea.  We agree.  We want to point out that we

         20  are seeking improved access to both systems in this

         21  City.  But I also want to point out that something

         22  that's unique about yellow taxis, is that there is

         23  also a resale market for used taxi vehicles.  Not

         24  just in the City, but all over the country.  And

         25  frankly, in the community car service industry,
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          2  there ain't too many new vehicles out there.

          3  They're used vehicles that are refurbished.  And so,

          4  that's one of the reasons why we think it's

          5  important, not necessarily to move ahead with yellow

          6  taxi access first, but that's where we're going to

          7  get the future community car service vehicles in

          8  this City, is in used yellow  -- accessible yellow

          9  taxi vehicles as well.

         10                 Excuse me, I think I'm running out of

         11  gas here.

         12                 Just two final points I'd like to

         13  make. Commissioner Daus also mentioned that we need

         14  a demand- response system, and Council Member

         15  Garodnick addressed that.  We think we know what

         16  their idea might be.  Because in a meeting about 15

         17  months ago, a few of us had with First Deputy

         18  Commissioner at the TLC, what was discussed was a

         19  total system.  Now this was not a proposal made to

         20  us, it was simply a discussion.  I want to be clear

         21  on that.  I don't want to put words in anybody's

         22  mouth.  But the idea was a system total, 150

         23  vehicles.  Accessible.  That's 150 out of two

         24  systems combined, where you have about 43,000

         25  vehicles. Just ain't enough.  It's not going get it

                                                            113

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  done.  It's not going to get it done for the people

          3  who live in this City, and the thousands of others

          4  who visit here, who work here in the suburbs and

          5  want to move around the City.  And the tourists.

          6  People who use wheelchairs would like to come here

          7  more frequently than they are able to do  So I think

          8  that's important.

          9                 And I'd just like you to consider the

         10    --  it's amazing to me the negativity and the

         11  rejectionism (sic) that we get from the Taxi and

         12  Limousine Commission in the greatest City in the

         13  world.  And that's got to be factored into.  Thank

         14  you.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank

         16  you.

         17                 MR. MOAKLEY: I have no more voice

         18  left anyway.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         20  very much.  You know, what I see here, and like was

         21  mentioned earlier, and opportunity. And if we have

         22  already limited access to our subway system, that we

         23  have an opportunity here to increase accessibility

         24  to the for- hire or the hails taxi, the hailing of a

         25  taxicab, and I think we should take, obviously, this
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          2  opportunity.  And I think that's what Intro. 339

          3  attempts to do.  And again, I think it's a step in

          4  the right direction, and of course, as Chair of this

          5  Committee for today, I do appreciate the input of

          6  the ridership.  You know, that perspective.  And I

          7  appreciate your time here today.

          8                 We have a question from Council

          9  Member Lappin.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you Mr.

         11  Chairman.

         12                 On May 11th, I think there were some

         13  vehicles that were in City Hall park, and I wanted

         14  to get here to take a look at them, but I just

         15  couldn't.  I wanted to ask of any of you were there?

         16    Say them?  Had any comments, for the record.

         17                 MS. RYAN: I was there.  And several

         18  of us were trying out the different models.  And we

         19  think that there should be a choice of different

         20  models.  Because people have different equipment,

         21  and some equipment fits in the different models

         22  better than others.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So the

         24  industry  --  and you here as advocates are in

         25  agreement that it's better to have some opportunity
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          2  for choice in terms of the vehicle.  Would that be a

          3  correct statement?

          4                 MS. RYAN: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay.  Thank

          6  you very much.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council

          8  Member Reyna.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I just want to

         10  go on the record  --  and forgive me for my

         11  tardiness  --  as far as the community who is

         12  requesting the TLC to respect the wishes of a

         13  community that has expressed such concern and

         14  advocacy for an industry that can supply them with

         15  such a service, of options. Compared to now, which

         16  is very limited.  Do you, and any one of you can

         17  answer this question, do you feel that a standard

         18   "L" shaped partition be possible  --  would be

         19  possible to address some of the issues related to

         20  side entry and rear entry accessible vehicles for

         21  wheelchair- using passengers, as well as for

         22  passengers in alternative fuel vehicles.   So I'm

         23  just trying to capture the interior, not just the

         24  need for the wheelchair accessible industry to

         25  supply you with service.  But also what type of
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          2  vehicle should be out there in the market being

          3  supplied, so that you can get the best service

          4  you're calling for?

          5                 And it's my understanding that this

          6  is used in London as opposed to here in New York.

          7                 MR. WOOD: Council Member, you're

          8  addressing the partitions that separates the

          9  passenger from the driver?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Correct.

         11                 MR. WOOD: Well, you know, the concern

         12  for safety of the driver is our concern as well.

         13  We're not looking to put anybody out of business.

         14  And we're not looking to see drivers become targets

         15  of crime.  So  --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Forgive me.

         17  I'm not referring to crime, in relation to the

         18  driver.  I'm asking in reference to the

         19  accommodations of the need to get into a vehicle

         20  that will accommodate you as well as your apparatus.

         21    For instance, you use a wheelchair, and so you

         22  want to maximize the space being utilized in that

         23  vehicle.  And so,  --  for instance in London, they

         24  have the vehicle where the partition goes around the

         25  driver so that there's more room inside for that
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          2  passenger to be able to maneuver inside and exit the

          3  vehicle, giving you more room, rather than more room

          4  in the front that's not utilized.

          5                 MR. WOOD: Well, I'll just respond by

          6  saying that we have met with a company  --  a new

          7  company that is hoping to build a sedan taxi that

          8  does just that.  That will have an open space in the

          9  front of the vehicle as well as room to maneuver  --

         10    so you'd kind of be able to make a "T" turn, if

         11  you know what I mean, rather than  --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Right.

         13                 MR. WOOD: So there would be a little

         14  bit more space. Some of the vehicles that are out

         15  there now do have more room than others.  So you

         16  know, interior room is a factor.  But the other

         17  thing that is a factor, is there are ADA

         18  specifications, American with Disabilities Act

         19  specifications that the TLC changed their regulation

         20  last week to include, and I think, you know, there's

         21  a certain amount of space that's required by those

         22  regulations, and a certain door height.  I know the

         23  London taxi, while it works for many people, it

         24  doesn't meet the American with Disabilities Act

         25  specifications in several areas.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I appreciate

          3  that clarification.

          4                 MR. WOOD: You know, I think you know,

          5  we're not looking for a recreational vehicle here.

          6  We want to get from point A to point B.  But in

          7  order to be able to do that, you have to be able to

          8  accept what the federal government defines as a

          9  common wheelchair.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I don't know if

         11  there's anyone else who wanted to comment.  But that

         12  clearly gives us a perspective, and an on- the-

         13  record answer as to moving forward with such

         14  legislations, where we're trying to refer to the

         15  needs of a community that's not getting service now,

         16  to do it right from the beginning, as opposed to

         17  then finding out we didn't do it  --  we didn't

         18  think of the different options out there.  And so,

         19  if we're not meeting the ADA requirements, and

         20  aesthetically, it looks good, we still have a

         21  problem.  And so we want to balance the needs of

         22  both.  So I appreciate that clarification.  Thank

         23  you.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         25  Council Member Reyna. Again, I do appreciate the

                                                            119

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  input of this panel.  Thank you so much for your

          3  time and testimony.  And have a great day.  Thank

          4  you.

          5                 Next panel of three to come up to the

          6  witness stand is Craig Gurian, Edith Prentiss, and

          7  John Gresham.  Please come forward.

          8                 At this time, I'd just also like to

          9  mention for the record, that the New York State

         10  Energy Research and Development Authority, also

         11  known as MYSERTAD, has presented written testimony

         12  to be made part of this Committee hearing.

         13                 I'd like to welcome this panel to the

         14  hearing today, and please state your name for the

         15  record.  Your affiliation, if any, and give your

         16  testimony.

         17                 MR. GURIAN: Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         18  My name is Craig Gurian, I'm the Executive Director

         19  of the Anti Discrimination Center of Metro New York.

         20    I wanted to first of all go on the record to thank

         21  the sponsors of Intro. 339.  I agree with my

         22  colleagues in the Taxis for All Campaign, that it's

         23  a very good first step.

         24                 I want to take the time of my

         25  testimony to step back to a couple of larger
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          2  questions.  I recall at the beginning of the hearing

          3  today, there was some colloquy back and forth about

          4  Members of the Council sharing with the

          5  representatives of the TLC, the desire to have a

          6  fleet that is accessible and green.  And I accept

          7  and compliment Chairman Addabbo and your colleagues

          8  for your sincerity in that.  But unfortunately, I'm

          9  constrained to say that on the Taxi and Limousine

         10  Commission side,  --  and I'm not a politician, so I

         11  get to say it  --  truly, empty words.  If there

         12  were ever an illustration of a can't do attitude,

         13  it's the TLC.

         14            And I want to go back to something that

         15  Council Member Martinez said, about responsibility.

         16  And the Administration not taking responsibility on

         17  this issue.  Compare how the Administration treats

         18  issue it believes are important.  We have to have an

         19  Olympic stadium.  But you can't get the athletes

         20  from one place to another.  You don't have the

         21  facilities.  Don't worry. We'll build a stadium,

         22  we'll go it.  We have to be on schedule.           The

         23  311 System.  Isn't it going to be a problem

         24  transferring that kind of system?  Don't worry.

         25  We'll scale it up. There's a real difference here,
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          2  and it's very, very disturbing.

          3                 The second point, and really, I ask

          4  you to think about this for a moment, because it's

          5  very important.  Either the TLC is trying to lead

          6  you down the path, or they don't have a clue. And I

          7  don't have as much experience on this issue as some

          8  of my colleagues do, but you wind up getting down

          9  into the details about how long it took to fix a

         10  chassis.  That's a prescription for not acting.

         11                 And the TLC fundamentally

         12  misunderstands the relationship, or the interaction

         13  between regulation and technological change.  They

         14  act as though the regulations only serve to codify

         15  the technological change that has occurred.  And we

         16  just wait for those nice volunteer efforts and

         17  everything will be fine, sometime in the year 2075.

         18  All of our experience  --  this is not speculative

         19   --  all of our experience is exactly the opposite.

         20  Seat belts.  Industry said, we can't do it.  We

         21  won't do it.  Mileage standards.  Industry says

         22  can't do it.  We won't do it.  Air bags.  Industry

         23  says, can't do it.  Won't do it.  It wasn't more

         24  cheerleading that caused those things to happen.  It

         25  was the imposition of regulations.  Of mandates.
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          2  Not mandates to go into effect say, next Monday.

          3  But phased in, in an appropriate period of time.

          4  Because as the TLC Chair let slip in response to one

          5  question, "Necessity had led to an evasion".  That's

          6  precisely what you're going to find when you do have

          7  a reasonable mandate.

          8                 The bill that's been referred to by a

          9  number of my colleagues does not require any

         10  accessible taxis.  It's a hybrid and accessible, so

         11  you have to pick one or the other.  It doesn't

         12  require any to be put into service prior to 2009.

         13  And none to be put into service by a small owner,

         14  the owner of a single vehicle, until 2011.  You

         15  can't wait until the eve of the changeover to do

         16  that kind of fleetwide system.  If you do that now,

         17  you will see the industry, and the manufacturers

         18  understand that there is a new day, and that's the

         19  direction in which we need to be going.

         20                 MS. PRENTISS: My name is Edith

         21  Prentiss.  And I'm aging/disability activist.  My

         22  position with DIA is the First VP Legislative

         23  Affairs.

         24                 I commend the Committee for

         25  considering this bill. But I also agree that
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          2  eventually, a mandate will be needed to ensure the

          3  human  --  the civil rights.  We deserve, and need

          4  to participate in the full course of activity and

          5  life that's in this City.  Without the ability to go

          6  out and put your hand up and get from point A to

          7  point B, that's not part of life.  No one else is

          8  expected to plan their life in advance.  It's a nice

          9  day.  Let's go shopping.  Let's go to the park.

         10  Let's go to the Botanical Garden. Excuse me.  Why

         11  should I have to plan my life any more than others.We're

         12  really looking at the for- hire vehicles becoming an

         13  Access- A- Ride light.  Access- A- Ride has not been

         14  a success.  We all know the problems of it.  We all

         15  know the problems with the Ride- for- All.  We all

         16  know all of these problems.

         17                 I'm a little tired of hearing that

         18  there are vehicles sitting out there, accessible

         19  for- hire vehicles.  Well, part of the problem is

         20  the TLC can't tell us who has vehicles. Don't tell

         21  me I have to sit and call every vehicle in my

         22  community to find out who has got one.  And if I'm

         23  someplace that's not in my community, am I supposed

         24  to go to the website, looking for the nearest one by

         25  zip code?  And just calling?  That's stupid.  That's
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          2  irresponsible.  And that's an insult.

          3                 I think we need to also look at the

          4  needs of visitors.  It's hard enough for New York

          5  City residents to deal with it.  I use the subway.

          6  I use the MTA.  A lot.  The trains, whatever.  In

          7  fact, this morning, was the MTA LIRR hearing meeting

          8  at the MTA headquarters.  Okay.  Here we are.

          9  Pouring rain. Forty- fourth Street and Madison.  Now

         10  to get here.  In less than an hour.  Good luck.

         11  Yes, everyone going out on the street putting their

         12  hand up was getting rained on.  But we don't even

         13  have that option.

         14                 I'd like to give two specific

         15  examples of the problems.  Yesterday morning, the

         16  joy stick fell of my wheelchair. Number one, it's a

         17  $1,500 piece to my wheelchair.  I don't want to lose

         18  it.  Number two, I am sitting there going around in

         19  circles trying to hold the joy stick on move, in the

         20  middle of Eighth Avenue.  Could I put my hand up and

         21  find a for- hire vehicle?  Could I call a for- hire

         22  vehicle?  No.  Luckily, a very sweet locksmith tried

         23  to help me.  I got on a bus, and I actually luckily

         24  found a repair shop.  This is unheard of in New York

         25  City.  Why is this part of our lives?
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          2                 A lot of wheelchair users are not as

          3  conversant with the verse means of transportation in

          4  New York City.  They're afraid to use the subway.

          5  And what we're finding is, with the increasing

          6  number of chairs and scooters, not only do they have

          7  to sit an wait for buses or Access- a- Ride, or

          8  whatever, but when the bus finally does arrive,

          9  there are already often two slots filled, so they

         10  sit further and further.  Waiting for excessive

         11  transport.

         12                 Hopefully, this Committee will move

         13  with the mandate, and we will see streams of

         14  accessible taxis going up, and we'll be able to get

         15  in them, instead of having to sit on the side. Thank

         16  you.

         17                 MR. GRISHAM: I'm John Grisham.  New

         18  York Interest for the Public Interest.  I speak on

         19  behalf of Disabled in Action. Jean Ryan, who spoke

         20  before is one of the Vice Presidents.

         21                 This  --  we're behind the rest of

         22  the nation and a lot of the rest of the world.

         23  Accessible taxis exist all over North America. The

         24  are the kind of vehicles that we've been talking

         25  about.  They're retrofitted minivans.  They work all

                                                            126

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  over this country.  They work in Chicago.  They work

          3  in Boston.  They've been doing it for decades.  Los

          4  Angeles, San Francisco.  The suburbs of Washington,

          5  Denver, Cambridge, Boulder, a number of places in

          6  Florida.  We can't even name them all.

          7                 Accessible taxis exist in London,

          8  because in 1989, the city government took a decision

          9  that all new taxis should be accessible, and they've

         10  now turned over their entire fleet and it's all

         11  accessible.  Boston started its program in 1988, the

         12  year before that.  We've got 27,  Now, you've heard

         13  from the TLC what their attitude is.  We commend you

         14  for 339, and urge you to adopt it.  We also urge you

         15  to adopt the bill that we've put before you that

         16  others have talked about, which will eventually, in

         17  stages, lead to a mandate for both hybrid and

         18  accessible.

         19                 But just so you understand some of

         20  the factual background.  We've heard a lot from the

         21  TLC about their reaction to your bill that you're

         22  proposing right now.  It's not right because it's

         23  too many.  And it's not right because it's not

         24  enough.  They were specifically asked if they would

         25  do more than nine percent, which they have been free
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          2  to do since the beginning.  Nine percent as a

          3  minimum.  No, they won't.

          4                 They're the ones who bring you the

          5  tidings about the supposed failure of these vehicles

          6  that have been in service. Well, they're all still

          7  in service.  I'm not telling you because I don't

          8  know precisely how many have problems.  But they

          9  didn't tell you that either.  They're all still in

         10  service.  They've all been repeatedly inspected.

         11  The TLC is therefore standing behind them as road

         12  worthy and safe.  And none of the owners have sold

         13  any of them.  They could have done that if they're a

         14  big problem to maintain and keep on the road.  There

         15  are many other choices available of accessible

         16  vehicles that meet the ADA specs.  And they could

         17  have sold them at any point up until now.  In fact,

         18  they could still sell them through June.  And they

         19  haven't.  I just ask you to bear in mind where that

         20  information comes from.

         21                 I also think I should answer one of

         22  your questions about how many accessible for- hire

         23  vehicles there are.  The TLC told you how they have

         24  done their best with this.  Something that Edith

         25  doesn't know, I just opened this envelope this

                                                            128

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  morning, and she hasn't seen this yet.  Here's a

          3  list of the bases which the TLC says have accessible

          4  for- hire vehicles.  There are nine entries. Nine

          5  bases.  Of these, I'm pretty sure one has four or

          6  five vehicles.  I suspect the rest have one.  So

          7  that yields 12.  Out of about something over 20,000

          8  neighborhood car service vehicles. That's how much

          9  their best effort has brought us on that side of the

         10  industry.

         11                 If you want to find out call up your

         12  car service, and ask them for a vehicle.  Now.  You

         13  want to go now to somewhere. And get their price,

         14  get their time, get their availability, find out

         15  what they tell you.  And then say, by the way, I

         16  need to use one that's wheelchair accessible.  And

         17  see how the story changes. You can do this for

         18  yourself.

         19                 This is a disgrace, that we're in New

         20  York City, in the shape that we're in, in the year

         21  2006.  Only a mandate will ultimately solve this

         22  problem.  We know that the vehicles succeed. The TLC

         23  has just narrowed down the pool of vehicles that can

         24  be used in this City.  Under the medallions that

         25  you're now considering.  They just narrowed it down
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          2  to a Chevy, and in effect, eliminated Ford,

          3  Chrysler, Honda, and Toyota vehicles.  And a couple

          4  of retrofitters.  And limited the designs.  They

          5  have done far more than require a relationship

          6  between a retrofitter and the manufacturer.  That's

          7  fine.  But they've knocked down most of the choices.

          8    Given a monopoly to a vehicle that nobody in New

          9  York City has used as a taxi.  And that's exactly

         10  the opposite of what they did when you forced them.

         11  You and the Council forced them to make hybrids come

         12  onto our streets.  They opened up their specs then.

         13  There are now six hybrids approved.  Various makers,

         14  various designs.  They have one design, very

         15  specific, very narrow.  Much narrower than the ADA

         16  specs.  They're not leading in the right direction.

         17  You need to.

         18                 And that's why we support your

         19  efforts here, and ask you ultimately to pass a

         20  mandate.  Thank you.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I want to

         22  thank this panel very much.  And again, I tend to

         23  agree.  We've seen what TLC can do on their own.  I

         24  do believe that any you know, real positive move is

         25  going to have to be done by a legislative act.  So I
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          2  do tend to agree with this panel.  Any questions

          3  from my colleagues?  No questions.  Thank you very

          4  much.  Thank you for your time and testimony.

          5                 The next panel, a panel of two.

          6  Trudy Hutter, and Michael Higgins.  Please step

          7  forward.

          8                 I'm guessing we have Michael Higgins.

          9    Right? Right.  Trudy Hutter?  No?  Okay.  We have

         10  one more panel after Mr. Higgins.  We have one more

         11  panel.

         12                 MR. HIGGINS: My name is Michael

         13  Higgins.  I publish a trade newspaper called Taxi

         14  Talk for the City's 12,000 plus cabs, and the 40,000

         15  plus drivers.  I also have a Cable show, and a radio

         16  show with the same name.

         17                 Just a couple of things I'd like to

         18  point out.  I heard the TLC initially say that they

         19  had no record of how many exact handicapped vehicles

         20  they have on the roads right now.  That they'd have

         21  to "get back to you on that".  Which to me is

         22  amazing for them to say, in that this is the whole

         23  nitty- gritty of what we're talking about today.

         24  That they wouldn't have that statistic, it astounds

         25  me.  Okay?
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          2                 The other thing I'd like to say is

          3  that one of the things I've noticed by talking to

          4  these people from the wheelchair coalition are that

          5  a big problem is that the advent of the motorized

          6  wheelchair.  And what happened was the wheelchairs

          7  in general, back for like the last 20 years,

          8  ordinarily weighed about 30 or 40 pounds.  Whereupon

          9  the cab driver, of which I've driven a cab for 20

         10  years off an on myself, just put the passenger in

         11  the cab, folded up the wheelchair, put it in the

         12  trunk, and off you go. Now, the advent of the

         13  motorized wheelchair, these things weigh about 300

         14  pounds, 350 pounds, and it's just impossible to put

         15  them into the existing passenger vehicles, way shape

         16  or form.  So you need not only  --  you just can't

         17  modify the existing vehicles. You have to invent a

         18  new vehicle where you can literally roll on with the

         19  wheelchair and roll off.

         20                 All right?  In fact, MTA has been

         21  having big problems with that, because the

         22  hydraulics on their buses were created for

         23  wheelchair passengers with 60 pound, or 50 pound

         24  wheelchairs, and a lot of the hydraulics are

         25  breaking today, because the wheelchairs that are
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          2  being rolled on the MTA buses are popping the

          3  hydraulic systems.  That's a big elephant in the

          4  room thing.

          5                 Let me go through a few other

          6  elephant in the room scenarios.  The biggest one is

          7  the  --  I'm getting the feeling this is going to be

          8  a political solution versus a practical solution, in

          9  that we're putting the cart before the horse.  First

         10  of all, the way in which you can pick up a

         11  handicapped person on the street right now  --  I

         12  mean, we have to double and triple park to pick up,

         13  you know, passengers who are not handicapped.  There

         14  are no pick- up and drop- off zones for handicapped

         15  people.  We are not allowed to get radio calls for

         16  dispatch.  We have to only get you know, these

         17  people on street hails.  And we are in a situation

         18  of approving something that was not a foundation yet

         19  in place for safe pick- ups and drop- offs,

         20  especially in Manhattan.  I mean, where do we pick

         21  up handicapped people?  At the bus stop?  And the

         22  crosswalks?  So I think we really have to get some

         23  zones for that, first and foremost, before we start

         24  getting into, you know, increasing the amount of

         25  vehicles for this purpose.
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          2                 There is a factor of extra insurance

          3  for these vehicles.  Because it's a higher

          4  liability, and there is the fact that we have to get

          5  extra training for the drivers, and tell them how

          6  to, and how not to transport the disabled people.

          7                 The obvious extra costs for the

          8  vehicle.  I know right now, the City of New York

          9  pays an average, all things considered, of $60 per

         10  handicapped ride.  Sixty dollars.  And just one of

         11  the things I was astounded by is that a vehicle with

         12  two days notice, that was wheelchair accessible,

         13  charged $250 to drive a passenger up to Kennedy

         14  Airport with a wheelchair.

         15                 I mean, there are some costs that

         16  they have seen take place over the years, where they

         17  feel that they have to charge $250 to transport a

         18  person to Kennedy Airport with two day's notice.

         19                 I'm just very curious, also, at the

         20  fact that this has taken place two and three weeks

         21  before the actual medallion sale was scheduled.  And

         22  a great concern to me that we get into a situation

         23  it's a rush job, and then we have to back track to

         24  figure out how to make it right, down the road.  I

         25  mean, we didn't know about this Intro. 339 six
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          2  months ago.  We didn't know about this Intro. 339 a

          3  year ago.  We're getting this dropped in our lap

          4  right now, and I'm personally up set because I feel

          5  that the cab drivers and members of the taxi

          6  industry are being demonized to a large degree, to

          7  make it sound like we don't care about the disabled,

          8  when we do.  But unfortunately, we're in a position

          9  where we can't be politicians.  We have to deal with

         10  brass tacks about how much it costs.  And how we're

         11  going to do these things, without getting into a

         12  whole big disaster down the road.

         13                 So my main concern is that we don't

         14  rush it through, and we take a very, you know,

         15  prudent step- by- step approach to it. And I don't

         16  know if two weeks before the medallion auction sale

         17  is a prudent step- by- step approach.  We might get

         18  into a whole hornets nest of things down the road

         19  which we may regret.  So we may even endanger the

         20  safety of disabled people versus helping them.  So,

         21  that's pretty much all I have to say on that part.

         22                 As far as a hybrid vehicle, the

         23  analogy is that given the time and the opportunity,

         24  the taxi industry can get things done.  I mean,

         25  hybrid vehicles didn't exist up until a very short
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          2  time ago.  And now the TLC and the industry has

          3  created an environment where these vehicles are

          4  slowly starting to sift into the market, and not

          5  just by mandate, by cabbies volunteering, looking at

          6  these vehicles as a new choice.  Because they want

          7  to save money on gas.

          8                 So with all that considered, I hope

          9  you reconsider the proposal.  And I don't want to

         10  say I'm dead set against the proposal itself,

         11  because it's  --  me, myself, I'm undecided what to

         12  do as far as what's fair for everybody, but I think

         13  the two week notice that we had to implement

         14  something is unattainable.  Okay, thank you.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr.

         16  Higgins, again, I appreciate your time and

         17  testimony.  And again, I'm not saying time is of the

         18  essence, but you understand that we know there's a

         19  medallion sale coming up in June.  And we do not

         20  know when the next one is, so I think the timing of

         21  this Intro. May be appropriate at this point.

         22                 But just so that I'm clear, so for

         23  the record. Handicapped, picking up those in

         24  wheelchairs, individuals in wheelchairs, you're

         25  saying creating zones.  They should be somewhere
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          2  different?

          3                 MR. HIGGINS: No, I'm saying before

          4  you expand the fleet to give an incentive to pick up

          5  a handicapped on the street --  right now, we pick

          6  up people in wheelchairs.  We literally, the cops

          7  turn a blind eye, because they know that's the only

          8  place we can do it sometimes, is at a crosswalk or

          9  at a bus stop, or next to a fire hydrant.  I mean,

         10  those zones to pick up handicapped people don't

         11  exist yet.  And the fact about handicapped people

         12  literally rolling out into the street to hail a cab,

         13  that's the only alternative they have to hail a cab

         14  right how also.  So I think these are some

         15  rudimentary issues that have to be dealt with first.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Create

         17  zones where they should go.

         18                 MR. HIGGINS: Right.  Before we expand

         19  the fleet looking to expand our service in that

         20  regard.  Okay?

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         22  very much.

         23                 I'm so sorry.  I am so sorry.

         24  Council Member Reyna.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I just wanted
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          2  to make sure that I got your opinion.  Because you

          3  seem to be very knowledgeable, not just because you

          4  have a radio station, and you hear from your --

          5                 MR. HIGGINS: Well, I drove off and on

          6  for like 20 years.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Exactly.  You

          8  have that professional experience, background.  I

          9  wanted to just find out how valuable have you

         10  considered having the option of a rear entry vehicle

         11  versus a side entry vehicle?

         12                 MR. HIGGINS: You know what?  It comes

         13  down to  --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And I ask,

         15  because your statements, as far as your testimony

         16  was concerned, opened the testimony by mentioning

         17  the fact that wheelchairs versus 20 years ago,

         18  compared to now, are very different.

         19                 MR. HIGGINS: Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: We're at 300

         21  pounds, so that your vehicle has to be a brand new,

         22  state- of- the- art, to anticipate that tonnage, or

         23  excuse me, that weight.  So that I would think the

         24  entry of that vehicle matters as well.  Whether it's

         25  rear or side entry.
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          2                 MR. HIGGINS: Well, you know, it's

          3  interesting you should say that.  Because I was

          4  talking to one of the wheelchair manufacturers, and

          5  they said that exact point.  If it's a side entry,

          6  the incline is going to be steeper, otherwise you're

          7  going to need like a side entry of three feet before

          8  you actually get into the vehicle.  And you know,

          9  there's no such thing in Manhattan.  You know, we

         10  don't  --  a lot of passengers don't even have a

         11  foot to get into the cab, let alone three feet.

         12                 So the rear entry vehicle, I would

         13  think,  --  my opinion, the lay persons opinion,

         14  would be the way to go.  But as far as a side entry

         15  vehicle, you know, we're double and triple parking,

         16  unfortunately, sometimes, just to pick up you know,

         17  non handicapped passengers.  But I would think  --

         18  ny personal opinion, the rear entry vehicle would

         19  probably be the way to go.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Have you heard

         21  from any of your listeners as far as the side versus

         22  rear?

         23                 MR. HIGGINS: No, I just saw the

         24  vehicles out front, I think it was on the 11th.  And

         25  I noticed some vehicles only had --  I don't know if
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          2  they were ready for cab service.  Some only had like

          3  one side.  Some cabs had both sides.  And --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So you saw no

          5  rear.

          6                 MR. HIGGINS: I did see rear vehicles.

          7

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Okay.

          9                 MR. HIGGINS: And the other thing that

         10  just  -- again, from a lay person's standpoint, they

         11  had to carve out a ramp inside the cab to create a

         12  rear entry vehicle.  And they created that with

         13  using fiberglass and removing metal. So I'm not an

         14  engineer, but I know when you remove metal and

         15  replace it with fiberglass, you know, it doesn't

         16  sound that strong, in my opinion.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Absolutely.  So

         18  we're talking about safety issues here.

         19                 MR. HIGGINS: Absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I just wanted

         21  to make sure that as far as the industry is

         22  concerned, to weigh in to the TLC so that it's

         23  understood, you are well aware of what's out there

         24  in the market or what's not.  And if this is not

         25  being taken into consideration, they're never going
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          2  to see wheelchair accessible vehicles, because the

          3  liability lies on you.

          4                 MR. HIGGINS: Well ultimately, yes.

          5  And the cabbies --  I think that the industry is in

          6  a lose/lose scenario, because if it doesn't work

          7  out, then it's like, oh, my goodness, these cab

          8  drivers and these fleets, they have such wreck cabs.

          9    It's like, wait a second.  These wreck cabs were

         10  forced upon us.  It wasn't our idea to put cars that

         11  weren't ready for this thing on the street.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: If we're doing

         13  it right from the beginning, it's very important in

         14  all aspects.  Not just the zone being created, but

         15  also, what type of vehicle are we mandating out

         16  there as an option for wheelchair passengers?

         17                 MR. HIGGINS: Exactly.  And I don't

         18  see that happening in two weeks.  To tell you the

         19  truth.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         22  Council Member Reyna. And thank you Mr. Higgins, we

         23  appreciate your time.  Thank you.

         24                 The last panel for today, a panel of

         25  four.  Bob Muldoon.  Please step forward.  Todd
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          2  Sigaty.  Sigaty, my apologies. Stephanie Mandell.

          3  Anhthu Hoang.  I apologize if I got that wrong.    I

          4  want to thank you very much for being here today. If

          5  you would kindly state your name.  If you have an

          6  affiliation, please state it.  And give your

          7  testimony please.

          8                 MR. MULDOON: Hello.  My name is Bob

          9  Muldoon. Associate Representative with the National

         10  Sierra Club Field Office in New York City.  The

         11  Sierra Club is one of the oldest and largest

         12  grassroots environmental organizations in the

         13  country, with over 750,000 members nationwide, and

         14  over 15,000 members in New York City.

         15                 We want to thank the Transportation

         16  Committee, especially Chairman Liu, and Council

         17  Member Yassky, for all the leadership and great work

         18  that you have done to allow hybrid electric vehicles

         19  into the taxi fleets.

         20                 Hybrid- electric vehicles are much

         21  cleaner, much cheaper to operate, and will lower our

         22  dependence on foreign oil. When compared to the Ford

         23  Crown Victoria, the workhorse of the taxi fleet,

         24  hybrids can cut small pollutants by over 80 percent,

         25  produce greenhouse gas emissions by almost 40
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          2  percent, double the gas mileage, and cut fuel costs

          3  in half.

          4                 These are tremendous improvements in

          5  a City where one in eight people are plagued by

          6  asthma, or symptoms of asthma. And it's also a smart

          7  policy for our coastal cities, that is on the front

          8  line to global warming.

          9                 Hybrid cars are mainstream, reliable

         10  vehicles that do not require special regular

         11  maintenance, special fuel, or plug in, or any

         12  investment in infrastructure.  And hybrids have

         13  received high ratings from the auto industry,

         14  including the Donolan Corporation, Consumer Reports,

         15  and Motor Trend Magazine.  The battery in the hybrid

         16  technology have manufacturer warranties of a minimum

         17  of eight years or 100,000 miles.  And new fuel-

         18  efficient models have been introduced for the Ford

         19  Escape, the Toyota Highlander, the Lexus SUV, the

         20  Honda Accord, and recently, the Toyota Camry.

         21                 In New York City, hybrid technology

         22  is becoming a standard across many of the fleets.

         23  The MTA developed hybrid electric technology for its

         24  buses, and has been purchasing almost exclusively,

         25  hybrid- electric buses for the last couple of years.
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          2                 City fleets now boast over 1,500

          3  hybrid vehicles, and that number is growing by the

          4  day.  And how, thanks to your good work, cabbies are

          5  beginning to embrace hybrids.  We now have a variety

          6  of hybrids on the road, mostly Escape hybrids, but

          7  also the Highlander SUV, the Lexus, and even a

          8  Prius.

          9                 In talking to hybrid taxi drivers,

         10  they have been positive about their experiences and

         11  many of them raving about the gas savings.  They

         12  cite a few complaints about size, and have found the

         13  vehicles to be very reliable.  That's not an

         14  official survey, but just from our speaking to some

         15  of the drivers.

         16                 Intro. 339 makes sense.  If enacted,

         17  the total clean taxis  --  the total number of clean

         18  taxis would jump from below 40 to almost 200 by the

         19  end of the Summer.  Although this would be a great

         20  increase in the number of alternative fuel vehicles

         21  on the road, it would represent only one percent of

         22  the entire fleet. Taxi fleet.  This is a very modest

         23  goal for the City, and one we hope we will quickly

         24  pass before the end of the year.

         25                 We urge the Council to follow this
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          2  bill up with other initiatives, and to keep pushing

          3  towards a clean taxi fleet.             And just one

          4  other note.  We're looking at the possibility of

          5  having about 200 hybrid vehicles, and I guess the

          6  other category accessible as well.  When it comes to

          7  hybrid vehicles, one  --  another thing we're

          8  hearing back from the cabbies, said people are not

          9  necessarily recognizing what they are. And we think

         10  it's important that these vehicles be demarcated in

         11  some clear way.  When you look at a hybrid- electric

         12  bus, it says, Clean Air Hybrid- Electric Bus.  But

         13  there's nothing on the cabs now.  So for all of the

         14  hard work that you're doing, that everyone is doing

         15  to get these out, they really need to be demarcated

         16  clearly, so that the public knows the work that

         17  you're doing, and the symbolic achievement  --  we

         18  gain that symbolic achievement. Thank you very much.

         19                    MR. SIGATY: Thank you Chairman.

         20  I'm Todd Sigaty, Director of

         21  smarttransportation.org, or CSHC or Coalition of

         22  Servile Health and Environmental and Community

         23  Organizations not only in New York City, where we're

         24  working on this bill, but also in many other cities,

         25  San Francisco, Chicago, Boston, other areas.       And

                                                            145

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  I just want to make a few quick points on follow up

          3  to what some people said today.  Not take too long.

          4                 I agree to seizing an opportunity.  I

          5  don't think this opportunity is actually going to

          6  harm any existing medallion owner.  It's not a

          7  mandate.  The last time I sat in this chair, there

          8  was actually a bill to cause a mandate.  And we did

          9  it at the time.  This is not a mandate on any

         10  existing medallion owner.  What you do, is have an

         11  opportunity, as a City Council, as a City of New

         12  York, to make a statement.  If you're able to have

         13   --  and Matt Daus yesterday said this could be the

         14  last time ever, in the history of New York, where

         15  there is a medallion sale  --  to put a few hundred

         16  on the road.  Why would you not choose to put the

         17  right ones on the road?  I can't think of any

         18  reason.

         19                 So we support this today.  And I want

         20  to mention just a few clarifications.  We just had a

         21  press event in San Francisco with the Mayor, who

         22  said that 50 percent of all taxis will be

         23  alternative fuel taxis by 2007.  In Vancouver,

         24  already, 10 percent are.  Chicago, Mayor Daley has

         25  just announced that it will happen in Chicago as
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          2  well.  I don't know why New York would not be able

          3  to improve upon one percent.  I don't think that's a

          4  good argument.

          5                 I think the demand is really there.

          6  I mean, you know, if you talk to a lot of taxi

          7  drivers, and of course, Michael and the industry

          8  knows even better, but I think the reports are

          9  pretty strong.  I actually was just working with

         10  Ford Motor Company, and they did a review in San

         11  Francisco, and also Vancouver.  Actually, 186,000

         12  miles were on one of the hybrid vehicles.  All of

         13  the reports initially are showing savings.  A

         14  minimum of $15 a day in New York, actually, from the

         15  original one, up to $30 a day in San Francisco.

         16  This was just reported in the news last week.  Ford

         17  released that press release themselves.

         18                 The point is, and I handed out this

         19  to you, this is actually for taxi drivers.  For

         20  money in their pocket.  And it's a choice that

         21  they're making to buy these, and make a bid on them.

         22  It's a choice.

         23                 I also think the demand is there for

         24  the alternative fuel vehicles.  Yesterday we were at

         25  the medallion site, and there was a current
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          2  medallion owner sign an alternative fuel vehicle

          3  medallion.  And he chose to go out and buy a Lexus.

          4  Now that even surprised me.  Why would you spend

          5  $50,000 on a vehicle?  But he chose to.  And why

          6  wouldn't a private businessman have the opportunity

          7  to choose that vehicle if he wanted to, and feel

          8  that he's providing the customer service?

          9                 On the partition issue, I've  heard

         10  Matt Daus say this over and over, and change his

         11  reasons why this is not a good idea, this bill, from

         12  comfort, to safety, to economics.  And obviously, we

         13  understand safety is the key issue here.  But a

         14  partition does exist in a Ford Escape Hybrid right

         15  now in New York. It's not that it can't.  I agree,

         16  it's very tight.  There are other vehicles allowed.

         17  If you go to Chicago, the list of vehicles are about

         18  two pages, that you could put on a taxi.  Now I know

         19  that's not New York, but it's possible to use a

         20  partition.  If you don't want to use a partition,

         21  it's your choice.  Again, it's not mandate.  And

         22  there are vehicles that are having a larger size.  And

         23  by taking an action, Ford listens.  I actually put

         24  together the meeting with Bill Ford, when he came

         25  here to meet with Matt Daus and David Yassky.  And
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          2  they listen.  When you make an action and take

          3  leadership, they listen.  Bill Ford called and said,

          4  I want to come and be part of that precedent.

          5  Because the City of New York is acting.  And other

          6  cities will act.  They will make vehicles like this,

          7  if you mandate it.  Or not mandate it, but take

          8  action.

          9                 Also, we helped  --  there was a poll

         10  that was run a year ago, it was put out by the New

         11  York Times.  Seventy- eight percent of the public in

         12  New York said, we would give up three or four

         13  inches, five inches of comfort for the benefit is to

         14  provide to access and to alternative fuel vehicles.

         15  So that's the public statement.

         16                 Finally, I think that  --  let the

         17  marketplace decide.  I think if you went  --  I went

         18  yesterday to the medallion sale, I'll go to the

         19  other one later in the week.  It was a buzz of

         20  hybrid issues.  It was a buzzing.  All of the taxi

         21   --  a lot of interested people there at medallion

         22  sales, were looking to buy an invest in these.  And

         23  I think that just offering even 154 of them, you'll

         24  have 154 people that are making a very strong

         25  financial decision to reward the City with that
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          2  price.  And also their own assets.  And I think that

          3  is a really strong statement for the marketplace.

          4                 Finally, the only thing I'd say on

          5  the bill is the language at the end about the

          6  average price, and 90 percent, which is kind of an

          7  off- the- hook issue, which is again, that's a

          8  marketplace to decide.  I think that is one thing

          9  that I think the Council can look at as a Committee,

         10  on how do you decide that price, actually.  Because

         11  there's even been some discussion today. And what

         12  would be the factor to allow that.

         13                 And then I would then follow also

         14  with the Sierra Club's point about the decals, and

         15  I've heard that mentioned a number of times.  And

         16  we've asked the TLC to do that, and they just said,

         17  yes, some day, some day.  I think it's very

         18  important that there is a decal of some kind on

         19  these vehicles.

         20                 Again, thank you very much for

         21  bringing this issue up today, and that's all I have

         22  to say.

         23                 MS. MANDELL: Good afternoon.  My name

         24  is Stephanie Mandell, and I am pleased to testify on

         25  behalf of INFORM in support of Intro. 339.  The
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          2  provisions to encourage the use of hybrid and

          3  compressed natural gas taxis are bold, forward-

          4  thinking measures by the City Council to address

          5  pressing issues that face New York City.

          6                 INFORM is a national nonprofit

          7  organization whose research identifies innovative

          8  business practices, technologies, and product that

          9  preserve natural resources and safeguard public

         10  health.

         11                 INFORM's Sustainable Transportation

         12  Program, for which I work, has been analyzing fuel

         13  alternatives and advanced propulsion technologies

         14  since the mid 1980s.  Many of our current outreach

         15  efforts work to achieve the same broad goals that

         16  Intro. 339 is proposing, putting more compressed

         17  natural gas, or CNG, and hybrid vehicles on the City

         18  streets.

         19                 INFORM supports the alternative fuel

         20  provisions in Intro. 339 for five key reasons, which

         21  I'll try and condense.

         22                 One, cleaning the air and protecting

         23  public health. According to the U.S. EPA's National

         24  Scale Air Toxics Assessment, New York City has the

         25  most toxic air in the nation, due to largely to our
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          2  transportation sector.  This means that New Yorkers

          3  have the greatest risk of getting cancer simply from

          4  breathing the air.

          5                 CNG vehicles, as compared to

          6  conventional gasoline burning vehicles reduce carbon

          7  monoxide by 70 percent; nitrogen oxides by 87

          8  percent; and carbon dioxide by almost 20 percent.

          9                 Hybrid vehicles also reduce

         10  emissions, because they burn less gasoline.

         11                 Point number two, is ensuring energy

         12  security.  As oil prices rise, and the U.S. Faces

         13  growing competition from developing companies,

         14  particularly China and India, the limited global oil

         15  reserves, reducing our dependence on oil will become

         16  increasingly important to New York City's energy and

         17  economic security.  Putting more CNG  and hybrid

         18  taxis into service would help the City accomplish

         19  this goal.

         20                 According to the Department of

         21  Energy, CNG, unlike gasoline, is domestically

         22  produced, and we have vast natural gas reserves.

         23  Although hybrid vehicles have different levels of

         24  fuel economy, they also help reduce the amount of

         25  gasoline, and therefore oil, used in New York City.
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          2  According to EPA data, gasoline- electric hybrids

          3  get 31 to 61 miles per gallon in city driving, in

          4  comparison with fuel economy on the Crown Victorias,

          5  obviously, the most popular car model for taxis,

          6  with only 18 miles per gallon.

          7                 Third point, combating global

          8  warming.  Within the past month, a study

          9  commissioned by the Bush Administration acknowledged

         10  what scientists internationally have agreed on for

         11  some time.  Human activities contribute to global

         12  warming.  Because New York is a coastal city, rising

         13  sea levels are our problem.

         14                 Four, modernizing New York's

         15  transportation sector. New York City is so far ahead

         16  of the curve on so many issue.  We commend the City

         17  Council for passing the suite of bills to adopt

         18  environmentally preferable purchasing practices in

         19  the last year. However, we are falling behind when

         20  it comes to using advanced technologies in our

         21  transportation sector.  Research contained in

         22  numerous INFORM publications demonstrate that cities

         23  around the country and around the world are already

         24  using greater numbers of compressed natural gas and

         25  hybrids.
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          2                 The fifth point, setting an example.

          3  Increasing the use of CNG and hybrid taxis presents

          4  an excellent opportunity to educate the public about

          5  the benefits of these vehicles.  And then I would

          6  also agree with the point of making citizens know

          7  that they are driving in an alternative fuel taxi.

          8  It's a great way to demonstrate that New York is

          9  actively addressing air quality, energy security,

         10  and global warming.

         11                 And just to wrap up, we'd just like

         12  to offer two suggestions to ensure the success of

         13  this bill.  As the bill is currently written, for

         14  each individual medallion, if the TLC does not

         15  recover 90 percent of what it would earn from

         16  auctioning off a conventional medallion, then the

         17  TLC is free to auction that medallion to a

         18  conventional taxi, not a hybrid or CNG, which we

         19  don't want to see happen.  In our various outreach

         20  efforts, INFORM has found that introducing new

         21  strategies incremental, allows the market to adjust

         22  better to changes.  We feel that this strategy will

         23  work with hybrid and CNG taxis as well.

         24                 To ensure enough competition that

         25  would drive up bidding prices, and reach the 90
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          2  percent threshold, INFORM recommends not auctioning

          3  off 50 percent of the medallions at first, but

          4  increasing it from you know, perhaps 25 to 50 at a

          5  future point.

          6                 And just our last point.  INFORM

          7  would also like to recommend that Intro. 339 contain

          8  provisions for training seminars on CNG and hybrid

          9  vehicles, to help taxi owners understand, properly

         10  operate, and refuel new vehicles.  Obviously, for

         11  hybrids, it isn't as much a concern.  But for

         12  compressed natural gas vehicles, you know, there's

         13  more new technology to deal with.

         14                 So we support this Introduction, and

         15  encourage New York City to be a national leader in

         16  protecting air quality, ensuring energy security,

         17  and fighting global warming.  Thank you for your

         18  time.

         19                 MS. ANHTHU HOANG: Hello.  My name is

         20  Anhthu Hoang, and I'm here to speak on behalf of We

         21  Act for Environmental Justice.  We are here today to

         22  lend our support to Intro. 339.  We Act is the

         23  nonprofit community- based environmental justice

         24  organization dedicated to building community power

         25  to fight environmental wastism (sic), and improve
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          2  environmental health, protection, and policy in

          3  communities of color.  We accomplish our mission

          4  through community organizing, education, technical

          5  assistance, and advocacy.

          6                 Over the past 18 years, We Act has

          7  worked to educate, mobilize, and advocate for more

          8  than 600,000 mostly low income African- Americans,

          9  Latino residents of Northern Manhattan, to

         10  participate in decisions affecting their quality of

         11  life.

         12                 For years, the air quality in our

         13  great City has been ranked among the worst in the

         14  nation.  As recently as last year, the American Lung

         15  Association reported that more than half of the

         16  eight million residents that call New York City

         17  home, face serious health risks, simply by breathing

         18  the air.  Likewise, since the 1990s, the U.S.

         19  Environmental Protection Agency has designated New

         20  York City as a severe non- attainment area for its

         21  one- hour ozone standard.  The eight hour ozone

         22  standard.  And its particulate matter standard for

         23  pm 2.5, the finest and most dangerous of the

         24  particulates measured by the EPA.

         25                 Violation of these national ambient
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          2  air quality standards put all New Yorkers at risk

          3  for health, but there are some New Yorkers that are

          4  more at risk than others.  Those who suffer from

          5  respiratory illnesses, such as asthma, are

          6  particularly vulnerable.

          7                 Studies conducted by one of the

          8  researchers that We Act has worked with over the

          9  years, Dr. Patrick Kinney, of Columbia University,

         10  looked at air pollution and respiratory

         11  hospitalizations in New York City, and the New York

         12  State metropolitan area.  One of the results of the

         13  study documented, was that the summertime haze that

         14  can play a significant role in the occurrence of

         15  respiratory admissions in that season, accounting

         16  for more than six to twenty- four percent of 1988

         17  Buffalo and New York City asthma admissions,

         18  depending on the pollutant index employed. These

         19  findings are played out every day in the lives of

         20  many of the residents that we work with in the

         21  communities of Washington Heights, West, Central,

         22  and East Harlem.  In fact, East Harlem and the South

         23  Bronx share the dubious distinction of having the

         24  highest asthma hospitalization rates in the nation.

         25  Likewise, Central Harlem, according to a recent
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          2  study, has a documented incidence rate of four out

          3  of every  --  one out of every four children tested

          4  being diagnosed as being asthmatic.

          5                 These are serious health impacts on

          6  our communities. The documented rates of air

          7  pollution and their contribution to the epidemic

          8  rates of asthma are major reasons why we support

          9  Intro. 339.  We do so recognizing that what makes

         10  this legislation so important, is not necessarily

         11  its immediate impact on air quality. It would take

         12  the City several years before an appreciable portion

         13  of the fleet could be converted.  We realize that.

         14  But its high profile and its signal that New York

         15  City is serious about addressing the issue of poor

         16  air quality that could lead to devastating health

         17  disparities in the City.

         18                 Intro. 339 calls for the use of more

         19  compressed natural gas, or hybrid- electric vehicles

         20  in the taxicab fleet.  And we believe that these

         21  vehicles will have a positive impact on health and

         22  the environment.  Hybrids substantially reduce

         23  emissions of carbon dioxide, carbon monoxide,

         24  particulate matter, nitrogen oxides, and

         25  hydrocarbons.  Together, these compounds result in
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          2  health problems such as lung and cardiovascular

          3  disease, cancer, asthma, and birth defects.

          4                 According to recent studies, 60,000

          5  Americans die every year from inhalation of

          6  particulate matter.  Most of them in polluted

          7  cities, like New York.  In fact, New York has the

          8  highest asthma mortality rate in the country.

          9                 Another reason we support Intro. 339

         10  is because we believe that in this era of escalating

         11  fuel costs, alternative fuel vehicles like hybrids,

         12  will be lighter on the wallet of both the working

         13  class cab drivers in the City, who have to pay for

         14  the fuel, and the passengers who get the costs of

         15  the fuel passed on to them in the fare.

         16                 Hybrids, because they use a joint

         17  gas- electric power delivery system, and regenerate

         18  much of their own power, achieve greater fuel

         19  efficiency and are better able to meet the emission

         20  standards than conventional gas- powered vehicles.

         21                 We urge the City Council to adopt

         22  Intro. 339, and hope that this initiative will not

         23  only be limited to yellow medallion cabs, but will

         24  soon cover all livery cabs as well.  Which abound in

         25  the neighborhoods that we work in.
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          2                 We especially thank Council Member

          3  Liu and Gennaro for their continued leadership on

          4  these important issues.  We stand ready to be of

          5  assistance to the Council in any way that we can.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 MS. MUGICA: Good afternoon.  My name

          8  is Yerina Mugica, and I'm a Research Associate with

          9  the Natural Resources Defense Council, who, as you

         10  know, has been actively involved for over 30 years

         11  in New York City's clean air and energy public

         12  health issues.

         13                 I'm pleased to be here today to offer

         14  a brief statement in support of Intro. 339, which

         15  would require that 50 percent of new taxicab

         16  licenses be used with compressed natural gas or

         17  hybrid- electric vehicles.  And 50 percent be used

         18  with accessible vehicles.  I thank Council Member

         19  Liu, as Chairman of this Committee; Council Member

         20  Addabbo, for standing in for Council Member Liu; and

         21  Council Members Gennaro, Koppell, Mendez, and Yassky

         22  for advancing this important bill.

         23                 Increasing the use of hybrid-

         24  electric and CNG vehicles in New York City would

         25  reap four primary benefits: Improved air quality in
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          2  the City; reduction in global warming emissions;

          3  reduction in U.S. Oil dependence; and significant

          4  cost savings for taxi drivers and owners.

          5                 I'll briefly elaborate on each of

          6  these.

          7                 First, increasing the number of

          8  hybrid and CNG taxis would help improve New York

          9  City's air quality.  Each year, approximately 1.2

         10  million tons of criteria pollutants are emitted from

         11  motor vehicles in New York City, significantly

         12  contributing to our air quality being ranked as the

         13  worst in the nation.  Here are some quick facts on

         14  how hybrids could help improve this situation. For

         15  example, the Ford Escape Hybrid emits 78 to 87

         16  percent less hydrocarbon and nitrogen oxide than the

         17  Crown Victoria, and 50 percent less particulate

         18  matter and carbon monoxide.

         19                 Second, using hybrid vehicles as

         20  taxis would reduce global warming.  Again, as an

         21  example, the Ford Escape Hybrid emits one- third

         22  less greenhouse gas emissions than the Crown

         23  Victoria.

         24                 Third, increasing the number of

         25  hybrid and CNG taxis on the road would help reduce
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          2  our dependence on oil.  Hybrid vehicles can achieve

          3  at least double the fuel efficiency of the Crown

          4  Victoria.

          5                 Fourth, the fuel efficiency of hybrid

          6  vehicles makes strong economic sense for taxi

          7  drivers and owners.  With current gasoline prices at

          8  about $3.00 per gallon, and assuming a doubling of

          9  fuel efficiency with the hybrid vehicle, we estimate

         10  a cost savings of at least $20,000 over five years.

         11                 We should add that field data on

         12  hybrid taxis have been very positive.  As the 30

         13  hybrid taxis in San Francisco approach 100,000 miles

         14  on the road, taxi drivers report fuel savings

         15  between $20 and $31 dollars per shift.  One driver,

         16  whose hybrid taxi has already reached 102,000 miles,

         17  reports fuel savings of about $5,000 per year.

         18                 Further, not a single complaint has

         19  been received about leg room or any other aspect of

         20  hybrid taxis.  And on the contrary, some hybrid taxi

         21  drivers are reporting higher tips from customers

         22  that appreciate the vehicle's environmental benefits

         23  and comforts.  And this is specifically for the San

         24  Francisco case, but I haven't heard TLC reporting

         25  any incidences of complaints here in New York City
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          2  either.

          3                 Finally, we do recognize the need for

          4  taxicabs to be accessible for all New Yorkers.  And

          5  we support increasing the number of accessible taxis

          6  in New York City as well.

          7                 In closing, we believe this bill, if

          8  enacted, is an excellent step towards increasing the

          9  use of cleaner fuel and accessible vehicles in New

         10  York City.

         11                 NRDC looks forward to working with

         12  both the Council and the Administration to enact and

         13  implement this law, and we are ready to assist in

         14  the investment of additional clean air taxicab

         15  legislation that will secure even greater public

         16  benefits for all New Yorkers.  Thank you for this

         17  opportunity.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         19  very much.  And being this is our last panel, I just

         20  wanted to ask this general question of all of you.

         21  To briefly, if you want to give input on this last

         22  question.

         23                 So we have a world without Intro.

         24  339.  It does not go forward.  The June medallion

         25  sale goes forward.  Are we confident that TLC will
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          2  do the right thing?  Yes or no.

          3                 MS. HOANG: Given the reticence to do

          4  anything within the past history, We Act doesn't

          5  feel that they would do anything on their own.

          6

          7                 MS. MUGIGA: I would just say, I think

          8  you got the answer directly from the TLC earlier

          9  today, when you asked if they would increase even

         10  beyond the nine percent, given that originally, we

         11  should have had 81 medallions on the road.  I think

         12  a good faith effort would have been for the TLC to

         13  come forward with that.  So I think, given the fact

         14  that that didn't happen, our confidence is not very

         15  high.

         16                 MS. MANDELL: I won't repeat, I will

         17  just agree.

         18                 MR. SIGATY: Well, just giving the

         19  experience of having passed a law last year to get

         20  hybrids on the road to begin with, I concur.  They

         21  would not.

         22                 MR. MULDOON: Yes, I would actually

         23  have to give a little bit of a pat on the back to

         24  the TLC for approving the sheet that I gave you,

         25  although they didn't seem to be too happy that we
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          2  were passing it out to people.  But I think you

          3  know, Matt Daus has come a long way.  Like

          4  seriously, we're actually planning a panel for him

          5  in Seattle for the International Association of

          6  Transportation Regulators on alternative fuel taxis.

          7    Because he is now the rock star in the United

          8  States on alternative fuel taxis. All the world.

          9  And I think that's quite remarkable, considering

         10  last year.  But I think considering you know, the

         11  history of the statements and relationship, he won't

         12  do anything.  I can't see him coming and supporting

         13  anything that you do, actually.  I would be shocked.

         14                 I think this is really about

         15  supporting the drivers in the industry, and about

         16  the City Council taking leadership that the rest of

         17  the country acts upon.  I really must reinstate that

         18  fact that it gets out.  There was over 200 papers in

         19  the U.S., last time the City Council passed a bill.

         20  We got calls from about 40 different cities.

         21  Independent drivers and industries from other

         22  cities, who are interested in this.  At least

         23  interested.  And that's a change.

         24                 So I think the change is coming from

         25  drivers themselves, who want to save some money and
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          2  look at options, and the City Council's leadership

          3  in New York that leads other cities. And the TLC

          4  will follow, but will not lead.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I

          6  appreciate again, this panel. I appreciate your time

          7  and testimony for being with us today. Thank you

          8  very much for your input.  Thank you very much.

          9                 You know, the input of all panels is

         10  very important today.  Whether it be our riders, or

         11  interested groups, the industry, even TLC.  The

         12  bottom line is what's important.  But like I said

         13  here earlier, I think we have an opportunity here,

         14  when we don't know when we'll have this opportunity

         15  again.  We don't know. If ever.

         16                 So the bottom line is, I think Intro.

         17  339 does address the fact that we are taking this

         18  opportunity, given the June sale of these

         19  medallions, to address an issue and go in the right

         20  direction.  For accessibility.  For alternative

         21  fuels.  I think again, we are taking a step in the

         22  right direction today, as this Transportation

         23  Committee.

         24                 I want to thank my colleagues for

         25  being here today. I want to thank the staff of this
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          2  Committee.  I want to thank Chairman Liu for not

          3  being here today, and giving me the opportunity to

          4  Chair this Committee.  It has been a pleasure.  To

          5  the Sergeant- at- Arms, thank you.  For all those

          6  who were with us today, thank you very much.  I look

          7  forward to speaking to you in the future.

          8                 Meeting adjourned.

          9                 The meeting was adjourned at 4:19

         10  P.M.

         11

         12                 The following written statement was

         13  submitted for the record.

         14                 Written statement of:

         15                 Peter Smith, President and CEO

         16                 New York State Energy Research and

         17  Development Authority

         18                 The New York State Energy Research

         19  and Development Authority (NYSERDA) is grateful for

         20  this opportunity to comment on the New York City

         21  Council's proposed Local Law amending the

         22  Administrative Code of the City of New York,

         23  regarding the designation of additional taxi

         24  medallions for alternative fuel vehicles and

         25  wheelchair accessible vehicles.
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          2                 NYSERDA is a public benefit

          3  corporation created in 1975 by the New York State

          4  Legislature.  Our mission is to use innovation and

          5  technology to solve New York's most difficult energy

          6  and environmental problems in ways that improve the

          7  State's economy.  For more than a decade, we have

          8  worked cooperatively with the City of New York to

          9  facilitate introduction of clean and efficient

         10  vehicle technologies.  In 2003, we executed a

         11  Memorandum of Understanding with the Taxi and

         12  Limousine Commission (TLC) to facilitate cooperation

         13  between NYSERDA and the TLC, for the express purpose

         14  of promoting use of taxi vehicles capable of using

         15  alternative fuels and providing wheelchair

         16  accessibility.

         17                 In the 1990s, NYSERDA sponsored the

         18  initial demonstration of New York City taxis fueled

         19  by compressed natural gas (CNG) and has since

         20  managed the Clean Fuel Taxi program, under which

         21  more than 300 CNG taxis have been placed in service

         22  in the medallion fleet.  This program has in recent

         23  years, been without a source of CNG vehicles,

         24  however, this problem has lately been remedied and

         25  we expect to be able to support deployment of
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          2  several hundred new CNG taxis in the next year or

          3  so.  The proposed legislation appears to be

          4  supportive or our ongoing efforts.

          5                 In the preceding decade NYSERDA has

          6  provided over $ million in research funding to

          7  develop improved taxi vehicles that address both

          8  energy efficiency and handicapped accessibility.

          9  Under this program, various prototypes have been

         10  designed, built, and demonstrated, including the

         11  MetroKing Taxi, a wheelchair accessible vehicle that

         12  has recently completed federal safety certification

         13  requirements.  Plans call for placing this vehicle

         14  in service in 2006, in a pilot fleet of about five

         15  medallion taxis. NYSERDA envisions this vehicle as

         16  being a platform for introduction of a variety of

         17  energy- saving innovations being developed in

         18  conjunction with the vehicle's manufacturer,

         19  MetroKing Motors. Potential future options include

         20  CNG and hybrid- electric powertrains.

         21                 Based on our experience in programs

         22  such as the one with MetroKing, NYSERDA is keenly

         23  aware of the need to develop wheelchair accessible

         24  taxis that not only meet dimensional specifications,

         25  but that also completely comply with the need for
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          2  safety, durability, and overall practicality as a

          3  commercial vehicle.  The proposed legislation

          4  appears to foster introduction of wheelchair

          5  accessible taxis in a controlled fashion that will

          6  allow proper validation of these vehicles with

          7  regard to durability and other critical attributes.

          8                 Therefore, we view the proposed

          9  legislation as a constructive move that will foster

         10  increased adoption of alternative fuels and

         11  wheelchair accessible vehicles in the taxi industry.

         12  We look forward to working with the private

         13  industry, the TLC, and other stakeholders to

         14  implement programs that are responsive to the intent

         15  of the proposed bill.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 4:19 p.m.)
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